
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
Meeting 

of the 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

of the 
SANTA BARBARA METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

A Public Agency 
May 13, 2014 

8:30 AM 
Santa Barbara MTD Auditorium 

550 Olive Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Dave Davis, Chair; Chuck McQuary, Vice Chair; Olivia Rodriguez, Secretary; Dick Weinberg, 
Director; Bill Shelor, Director; Ed Easton, Director; David Tabor, Director 

 
3. REPORT REGARDING POSTING OF AGENDA 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
4. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES-(ATTACHMENT-ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 

The Board will be asked to waive the reading of and approve the draft minutes for the meeting of  
April 29, 2014. 
 

5. CASH REPORT-(ATTACHMENTS-ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
The Board will be asked to review the cash report of April 22, 2014 through May 5, 2014. 
 

THIS CONCLUDES THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public may address the Board on items within jurisdiction of the Board that are not 
scheduled for public hearing.  The time allotted per speaker will be at the discretion of the Board 
Chair.  If you wish to address the Board under this item number, please complete and deliver to the 
MTD Board Clerk, a “Request to Speak” form including a description of the subject you wish to 
address.  Additional public comment will be allowed during each agenda item, including closed 
session items.  Please fill out the Request to Speak form and indicate the agenda item number that 
you wish to comment on. 
 

7. QUARTERLY STAFF REPORTS- (ATTACHMENT- ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
 The Board will review quarterly reports for the period of January 1, 2014 through March 31, 2014. 

 
8. FINANCE UPDATE & FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIOD 

ENDING MARCH 31, 2014 – (ATTACHMENT- ACTION MAY BE TAKEN)  
Staff will present to the Board the Finance Update & Financial Statement Analysis.  
 

9. TRANSIT TECHNICAL SERVICES CONTRACT AWARD RECOMMENDTION – (ATTACHMENT-
ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
Staff recommends that the Board award a contract to Vaquero Systems for transit technical 
consulting services for a three-year period for a not-to-exceed amount of $150,000. 
 
 



 
10. PROPERTY INSURANCE RENEWAL EFFECTIVE: MAY 24, 2014 THROUGH MAY 23, 2015 – 

(ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize MTD staff to bind Property Insurance 
coverage with Liberty Mutual Insurance Company and Earthquake coverage effective May 24, 2014. 

 
11. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT UPDATE-(ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 

a) MCI’s 
b) AVL Project 
c) Goleta State of the City 

 
12. OTHER BUSINESS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS-(ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 

The Board will report on other related public transit issues and committee meetings 
 

RELATED TO EACH CLOSED SESSION; PUBLIC COMMENT WILL BE ALLOWED RELATED TO THE 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) BEFORE THE RECESS 
 

13. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION- PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT- (ACTION MAY BE 
TAKEN) 
The Board will meet in closed session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 
Title: General Manager 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
AMERICAN WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the MTD Administrative Office at 963-3364 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to allow 
time for MTD to attempt a reasonable accommodation. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Meeting 

of the 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

of the 
SANTA BARBARA METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

A Public Agency 
April 29, 2014 

8:30 AM 
Santa Barbara MTD Auditorium 

550 Olive Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Davis called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. 
 

2. ROLL CALL OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Chair Davis reported that all members were present. 

 
3. REPORT REGARDING POSTING OF AGENDA 

Natasha Garduno, Executive Assistant, reported that the agenda was posted on Friday,  
April 25, 2014 at MTD’s Administrative Office, emailed and mailed to those on the agenda minutes 
list, and posted on MTD’s website. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
4. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES- (ATTACHMENT-ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 

Chair Davis asked that the minutes be amended on item # 8 and that the comments be placed below 
the item # 8 description.  Director McQuary moved to approve the draft minutes for the meeting of 
April 15, 2014. Director Rodriguez seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously, with 
Director Tabor abstaining.  
 

5. CASH REPORT-(ATTACHMENTS- (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
Director McQuary moved to approve the cash reports of April 8, 2014 through April 21, 2014.  
Director Rodriguez seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

THIS CONCLUDES THE CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Mr. Lee Moldaver spoke under public comment regarding the success of the Earth Day event and 
both CEC and MTD’s participation, as well as County Supervisor Salud Carbajal being honored as 
Environmental Hero. 
 

7. PROPOSED FINAL SERVICE PLAN FOR AUGUST 2014- (ATTACHMENT- ACTION MAY BE 
TAKEN) 
Staff presented to the Board the August 2014 Proposed Final Service Plan.  There was discussion 
regarding how the changes to 15X routing would affect the student population. 
 
Mr. Lee Moldaver spoke under public comment regarding his opposition to the elimination of Line 22. 
 
Director Weinberg moved to approve the Proposed Final Service Plan.  Director Easton seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed by a vote of six to one, with Chair Davis opposed.  
 
 



8. PROPERTY INSURANCE RENEWAL EFFECTIVE: MAY 24, 2014 THROUGH MAY 23, 2015. – 
(ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
Staff recommended the purchase of a policy from Liberty Mutual Insurance Co., as their rates were 
more competitive than Travelers Insurance, the current carrier covering MTD.  Director Davis 
suggested that the Board table this item and bring a complete proposal including a recommendation 
on earthquake coverage to a future meeting.  Director McQuary moved that the Board table the item 
to the next meeting.  Director Weinberg seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

9. RECOMMEND CONTRACT AWARD FOR TRANSIT TECHNICAL CONSULTING SERVICES – 
(ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
Staff recommended that a contract be awarded to Vaquero Systems for on-call transit technical 
consulting services.  Director Davis suggested that the Board table the item to the next meeting so 
the Board can review the proposed contract.  Director Easton moved to table the item.  Director 
Rodriguez seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

10. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT UPDATE-(ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
General Manager Fisher discussed the required Ethics Training required for the Board and MTD 
Administration.  She and Director Weinberg also reported regarding the VCTC/SBCAG meeting on 
VISTA service and the future of the Coastal Express Limited buses. Staff members Jerry Estrada, 
Steve Maas and George Amoon reported attending workshops regarding the upcoming Triennial 
Review. 

 
11. OTHER BUSINESS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS-(ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 

No other items were discussed. 
 

RELATED TO EACH CLOSED SESSION; PUBLIC COMMENT WILL BE ALLOWED RELATED TO THE 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) BEFORE THE RECESS 

 
12. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION- PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT- (ACTION MAY BE 

TAKEN) 
The Board will meet in closed session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 
Title: General Manager 
 
Upon returning from closed session Chair Davis reported that no action was taken. 
 

13. ADJOURNMENT 
Director Tabor moved to adjourn the meeting at 11:30 a.m.  Director Easton seconded the motion.  
The motion passed unanimously. 

 



Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District

Board Meeting of May 13, 2014
Cash Report

For the Period April 22, 2014 through May 5, 2014

$7,329,856.96

MONEY MARKET

Beginning Balance April 22, 2014

SB-325  (LTF) 454,330.00
Property Tax Revenue 369,685.06
Passenger Fares 150,067.27
Accounts Receivable 111,124.78
Advertising/Prepaid Deposi 2,760.00
Miscellaneous/Asset Sales 310.21
Measure "A" .00

1,088,277.32Total Deposits

463.50WC Transfer - April '14
(1,120.71)ACH Garn/Escrow 

(33,276.17)ACH Pensions Transfer
(140,237.08)ACH Tax Deposit
(255,197.61)Operations Transfer
(310,803.05)Payroll Transfer

(740,171.12)Total Disbursements

$7,677,963.16Total Cash and Investments as of May 5, 2014:

CASH INVESTMENTS 

WC / Liability Reserves ($2,255,965.05)

Ending Balance

7,677,963.16

Working Capital                                                      

LAIF Account $3,329,857.03

Total Cash Balance $11,007,820.19

Money Market Account

$8,751,855.14

SELF INSURED LIABILITY ACCOUNTS

06-May-14Cash Report Cover Sheet 15:35



Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District 
Accounts Payable

Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  106478 4/23/2014 TEAMSTERS MISC SECURITY TRU UNION MEDICAL/DENTAL                       2,397.00  

  106479 4/24/2014 ABC BUS COMPANIES INC              BUS PARTS                                                   380.67  

  106480 4/24/2014 HENRY ANDREWS                      RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  106481 4/24/2014 APPLEONE EMPLOYMENT SERVIC CONTRACT SERVICES                               1,860.00  

  106482 4/24/2014 AXLE TECH INTERNATIONAL     D BUS PARTS                                                   134.46  

  106483 4/24/2014 B2B SERVICES     DBA               OFFICE SUPPLIES                                       167.40  

  106484 4/24/2014 BUENA TOOL, INC.                   SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                 159.76  

  106485 4/24/2014 CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC SUPPLY, I SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                 106.79  

  106486 4/24/2014 GILBERT CALLES                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    60.00  

  106487 4/24/2014 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS                BUS PARTS & SUPPLIES                            136.07  

  106488 4/24/2014 CARPINTERIA VALLEY CHAMBER MEMBERSHIP DUES                                   181.50  

  106489 4/24/2014 STAN CISOWSKI                      RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    195.38  

  106490 4/24/2014 COAST TRUCK PARTS                  BUS PARTS                                                   1,136.49  

  106491 4/24/2014 CUMMINS PACIFIC, LLC               BUS PARTS                                                   3,867.99  

  106492 4/24/2014 CA STATE OF BOARD OF EQUALIZ SALES/CONSUMER USE TAX                   1,441.00  

  106493 4/24/2014 DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICL VEHICLE REGISTRATION                         444.00  

  106494 4/24/2014 DELTA DENTAL OF CALIFORNIA    DENTAL INSURANCE                                9,310.00  

  106495 4/24/2014 DELTA DENTAL INSURANCE COM DENTAL INSURANCE                                2,063.40  

  106496 4/24/2014 ALICIA DIEHL                       RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    60.00  

  106497 4/24/2014 ERGOMETRICS, INC.                  DRIVER TEST SCORING                            122.00  

  106498 4/24/2014 FEDEX         dba                  FREIGHT CHARGES                                    148.14  

  106499 4/24/2014 FIA CARD SERVICES                  MISC CREDIT CARD CHARGES               10,580.99  

  106500 4/24/2014 MELVIN FOUNTAIN                    RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    60.00  

  106501 4/24/2014 GENFARE, A DIVISION OF SPX CO FAREBOX REPAIRS & PARTS                   45,715.16  

  106502 4/24/2014 GIBBS INTERNATIONAL INC            BUS PARTS                                                   1,067.98  

  106503 4/24/2014 GILLIG LLC                         BUS PARTS                                                   5,690.28  

  106504 4/24/2014 GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBBER CO     LEASED TIRES                                             1,022.68  

  106505 4/24/2014 ALI HABIBI                         RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  106506 4/24/2014 INTERCON TECHNOLOGIES    DBA EV/CHARGER REPAIRS                             585.34  

  106507 4/24/2014 DONALD JACKSON                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    60.00  

  106508 4/24/2014 JOY EQUIPMENT PROTECTION, IN SERVICING FIRE EXTINGUISHERS         60.00  

  106509 4/24/2014 LNI CUSTOM MANUFACTURING     SHELTER FOOTINGS 2,328.90  

  106510 4/24/2014 MAAS, STEVE                        PER DIEM 300.00  

  106511 4/24/2014 MC CORMIX CORP. (GAS)              FUEL-SERVICE VEHICLES                        2,005.96  

  106512 4/24/2014 MOHAWK MFG. AND SUPPLY CO.  BUS PARTS                                                   1,090.47  

  106513 4/24/2014 MCI SERVICE PARTS, INC.            BUS PARTS                                                   742.08  

  106514 4/24/2014 PREVOST CAR INC.- CREDIT DEPT. BUS PARTS                                                   547.64  

  106515 4/24/2014 POWERSTRIDE BATTERY CO.          EV BATTERIES                                            592.77  

16:3206-May-14Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  106516 4/24/2014 SB LOCKSMITHS, INC.                B&G REPAIR & SUPPLIES                         108.00  

  106517 4/24/2014 SB TROPHY                          NAME PLATES/BADGES 74.79  

  106518 4/24/2014 VISIT SANTA BARBARA                CONFERENCES/MEETINGS                       65.00  

  106519 4/24/2014 SHIELD HEATING AND AIR     DBA B&G REPAIRS & SUPPLIES                       175.00  

  106520 4/24/2014 SMART & FINAL                      OFFICE/MEETING SUPPLIES                    460.87  

  106521 4/24/2014 SO. CAL. EDISON CO.                UTILITIES                                                     2,912.48  

  106522 4/24/2014 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO UTILITIES                                                     388.74  

  106523 4/24/2014 STAPLES INC. & SUBSIDIARIES       OFFICE SUPPLIES                                       208.87  

  106524 4/24/2014 STEWART'S DE-ROOTING & PLUM PLUMBING REPAIRS                                  90.00  

  106525 4/24/2014 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC.      FREIGHT CHARGES                                    433.69  

  106526 4/24/2014 VALLEY POWER SYSTEMS, INC.     BUS PARTS                                                   1,426.86  

  106527 4/24/2014 VERIZON CALIFORNIA                 TELEPHONES                                               888.54  

  106528 4/24/2014 VERIZON WIRELESS                   WIRELESS PHONES                                    827.77  

  106529 4/24/2014 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY      DBA JANITORIAL SUPPLIES                              359.89  

  106530 4/24/2014 ALEXANDER YOUNG                    RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  106531 4/29/2014 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA              SUPERSTOPS - PERMIT FEES                   627.52  

  106532 5/2/2014 ABC BUS COMPANIES INC              BUS PARTS                                                   266.58  

  106533 5/2/2014 ACCOUNTEMPS             DBA        PROFESSIONAL SERVICE                         1,434.00  

  106534 5/2/2014 APPLEONE EMPLOYMENT SERVIC CONTRACT SERVICES                               930.00  

  106535 5/2/2014 AXLE TECH INTERNATIONAL     D BUS PARTS                                                   1,303.61  

  106536 5/2/2014 BAY CITY FAB         DBA           FORKLIFT SUPPLIES                                  140.00  

  106537 5/2/2014 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS                BUS PARTS & SUPPLIES                            26.28  

  106538 5/2/2014 CIO SOLUTIONS, LP                  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                       806.00  

  106539 5/2/2014 CUMMINS PACIFIC, LLC               BUS PARTS                                                   1,234.07  

  106540 5/2/2014 DAVID DAVIS JR.                    DIRECTOR FEES                                          360.00  

  106541 5/2/2014 MARY DEAILE                        PAYROLL RELATED                                   106.15  

  106542 5/2/2014 DOCUPRODUCTS CORPORATION   COPIER COPIES & SUPPLIES                    26.89  

  106543 5/2/2014 EDWARD EASTON                      DIRECTOR FEES                                          300.00  

  106544 5/2/2014 EBUS, INC.                         BUS PARTS                                                   47.53  

  106545 5/2/2014 ELECTRO-MECHANICAL REPAIR, I BUS PARTS & REPAIRS                              946.04  

  106546 5/2/2014 STATE OF CALIFORNIA/FTB            PAYROLL RELATED                                   255.16  

  106547 5/2/2014 GIBBS INTERNATIONAL INC            BUS PARTS                                                   1,369.91  

  106548 5/2/2014 HD SUPPLY WHITE CAP CONSTR. S B&G SUPPLIES/SHOP SUPPLIES              108.15  

  106549 5/2/2014 H.G. MAKELIM CO., INC.             BUS PARTS                                                   6,861.24  

  106550 5/2/2014 HOME IMPROVEMENT CTR.             SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                 36.46  

  106551 5/2/2014 IPC (USA), INC.                    BUS FUEL                                                     73,974.61  

  106552 5/2/2014 LAWSON PRODUCTS INC                SHOP SUPPLIES 313.52  

  106553 5/2/2014 MC CORMIX CORP. (OIL)              LUBRICANTS                                               2,599.58  

  106554 5/2/2014 CHUCK MCQUARY                      DIRECTOR FEES                                          360.00  

  106555 5/2/2014 MIKE CUEVAS GARDENING SERVI LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICE 695.00  

  106556 5/2/2014 MOHAWK MFG. AND SUPPLY CO.  BUS PARTS                                                   26.35  

16:3206-May-14Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  106557 5/2/2014 MOUNTAIN SPRING WATER             SHOP & OFFICE SUPPLIES                        1,025.55  

  106558 5/2/2014 NATIONAL INTERSTATE INS INC.   LIABILITY INSURANCE                             27,436.66  

  106559 5/2/2014 NEWARK ELECTRONICS, CORP.      B&G REPAIRS & SUPPLIES 43.41  

  106560 5/2/2014 NU-COOL REDI GREEN, INC            COOLANTS & SHOP SUPPLIES                 127.98  

  106561 5/2/2014 PREVOST CAR INC.- CREDIT DEPT. BUS PARTS                                                   73.31  

  106562 5/2/2014 OR DEPT OF JUSTICE                 PAYROLL RELATED                                   68.23  

  106563 5/2/2014 ANN BRADY OTTIERI                  PAYROLL RELATED                                   277.00  

  106564 5/2/2014 OLIVIA RODRIGUEZ                   DIRECTOR FEES                                          300.00  

  106565 5/2/2014 SB COUNTY FEDERAL CREDIT UNI PAYROLL DEDUCTION                              1,060.00  

  106566 5/2/2014 KAREN SEELEY                       PAYROLL RELATED                                   75.69  

  106567 5/2/2014 WILLIAM JOHN SHELOR                DIRECTOR FEES                                          300.00  

  106568 5/2/2014 SO. CAL. EDISON CO.                UTILITIES                                                     214.05  

  106569 5/2/2014 SB CITY OF-REFUSE/WATER            UTILITIES                                                     3,005.12  

  106570 5/2/2014 TILFORD WELDING                    VENDOR BUS REPAIRS                             70.00  

  106571 5/2/2014 DAVID T. TABOR                     DIRECTOR FEES                                          180.00  

  106572 5/2/2014 TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL NO. 18 UNION DUES                                                686.41  

  106573 5/2/2014 TRANSIT PRODUCTS AND SERVIC BUS PARTS                                                   12,394.60  

  106574 5/2/2014 VALLEY POWER SYSTEMS, INC.     BUS PARTS                                                   2,129.83  

  106575 5/2/2014 WAYTEK INC.                        BUS PARTS & SHOP SUPPLIES                 127.32  

  106576 5/2/2014 RICHARD WEINBERG                   DIRECTOR FEES                                          300.00  

  106577 5/2/2014 TEAMSTERS MISC SECURITY TRU UNION MEDICAL/DENTAL                       4,050.00  

255,197.61

0.00

$255,197.61

Prior Cash Report Voided Checks: 0.00

Current Cash Report Voided Checks:

Grand Total:

16:3206-May-14Accounts Payable Check Register



Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District
Cash Receipts of Accounts Receivable

Date Company Description Amount

4/24/2014 SB County Public Health            Passes/Token Sales                                               5,961.25

4/25/2014 Department of Rehabilitation       Passes/Token Sales                                               20.00

4/25/2014 Department of Rehabilitation       Passes/Token Sales                                               20.00

4/25/2014 Department of Rehabilitation       Passes/Token Sales                                               20.00

4/25/2014 Department of Rehabilitation       Passes/Token Sales                                               20.00

4/25/2014 Department of Rehabilitation       Passes/Token Sales                                               20.00

4/25/2014 Department of Rehabilitation       Passes/Token Sales                                               20.00

4/25/2014 Department of Rehabilitation       Passes/Token Sales                                               20.00

4/28/2014 SB School District                 Passes/Token Sales                                               41,250.00

4/28/2014 UCSB - Parking Services-7001       Passes/Passports Sales                                           8,904.00

4/29/2014 Wells Marketing, LLC               Advertising on Buses                                             1,759.50

4/29/2014 Wells Marketing, LLC               Advertising on Buses                                             1,759.50

4/30/2014 City of S.B. Waterfront Department Waterfront Shuttle Service-Cruise Ship 4/9 4,155.28

4/30/2014 City of S.B. Waterfront Department Waterfront Shuttle Service-Cruise Ship 4/11,13/14 8,310.56

4/30/2014 City of S.B. Waterfront Department Waterfront Shuttle Service-Cruise Ship 3/28,30/14 8,310.56

4/30/2014 City of S.B. Waterfront Department Waterfront Shuttle Service-Cruise Ship 4/6 4,155.28

5/1/2014 County of Santa Barbara            Passes/Token Sales                                               2,646.00

5/1/2014 UCSB - Parking Services-7001       Passes/Passports Sales                                           8,560.00

5/2/2014 Department of Rehabilitation       Passes/Token Sales                                               40.00

5/2/2014 Department of Rehabilitation       Passes/Token Sales                                               20.00

5/5/2014 ASTI Holding Company, LLC          Overpass Property Lease                                          15,152.85

$111,124.78Total Accounts Receivable Paid During Period

5/6/2014 3:55:32 PMCash Report Accounts Receivable Printed



Quarterly Reports
FY 2013-2014, 3rd Quarter

January 1, 2014 - March 31, 2014



Table of Contents 
 
 

Fiscal Year 2013 Summary…………………………………………….1-3 
   

 

Planning  
 
 Ridership and Overloads…………………………………………………..4-10  
  
  

Transit Operations 
 

Operations…………………….……………………………………………..11-12 
 

Fleet Maintenance………...………..………………………………………13-21 
 
 
Management & Administration 
 

Human Resources………………….…………………………………………..22 
   
     Risk….…………………………………………………………………….……...23 
 
 Marketing..……………………………………………………………….……...24 
 

Compliance……………...………………………………………………………25  
 

Organization Chart……………………………………………………………..26 
 



   

 
3Q, FY 2014 Summary 
January 1, 2014 to March 31, 2014 

Planning Department 
Total MTD ridership for the third quarter of this fiscal year decreased from 1.94 million riders in 
FY 2013 to 1.90 million in FY 2014. The decrease of approximately 38,000 passengers 
represents a 2.0 percent decline in ridership.  Weekday ridership for the third quarter declined 
1.9 percent, while Saturday ridership fell 4.6 percent, and Sunday ridership increased 1.6 
percent for the quarter.   

For the fiscal year to date, total ridership has declined 1.9 percent, or about 113,000 
passengers. Year to date day-type ridership declines were 0.8 percent, 3.0 percent, and 4.2 
percent for weekdays, Saturdays, and Sundays respectively.  

Shuttle Routes 

Downtown-Waterfront Shuttle ridership increased by 10.2 percent overall during the third 
quarter. Eight cruise ships visited the City in the third quarter of FY 2014, while there were no 
visits in the same quarter of FY 2013. Six ships arrived on weekdays, one on a Saturday, and 
one on a Sunday. Weekday ridership increased 10.8 percent, Saturday ridership increased 5.1 
percent, and Sunday ridership increased 14.5 percent. Ridership on non-cruise ship weekdays 
increased about 3 percent over last year.  The average ridership increase during a cruise ship 
visit was 332 passengers on State Street, 268 on the Harbor shuttle, and 43 on the shuttle 
heading to the Zoo. Note that because a great many of the cruise ship passengers are senior 
citizens, the increased ridership is shown under “Senior” rather than “Shuttle” in the Ridership 
by Fare Category table on page 4. 

Ridership on the Seaside Shuttle, which circulates every 20 minutes in Carpinteria, increased 
very slightly (1.0 percent) compared to the third quarter last year. 

Santa Barbara’s Crosstown Shuttle, which runs every 23 minutes at peak times and every 47 
minutes mid-day, carried 6.5 percent fewer passengers for the quarter compared to last year. 
Year-to-date ridership has decreased 10.1 percent. Over time, it is expected that the increased 
frequency at peak times, which was approved as part of the August 2014 service changes, will 
generate an increase in ridership and improve schedule adherence on the Crosstown Shuttle.  

Express Routes 

Ridership on the four express routes combined decreased by 5.2 percent for the third quarter 
and decreased 3.0 percent (33,000 passengers) from last year for the year to date. Ridership on 
Line 15x has increased slightly from the third quarter last year, but ridership decreased on Lines 
12x, 21x, and 24x. In spite of an overall ridership decrease of 2,300 passengers (-7.9 percent) 
on Line 21x, there was a significant increase in the number of overloads for this particular 
quarter. Almost all of the Line 21x overloads occurred on the 7:35 a.m. Santa Barbara-bound 
trip. Planning staff will continue to monitor ridership on the express routes.   

Inter-regional Coastal Express Limited ridership between Santa Barbara/Goleta and Ventura 
was virtually flat for the third quarter.  

1 



Also Noteworthy 

While total ridership on the school booster routes decreased slightly (from 74,285 to 74,136, or 
0.2 percent) from last year, the number of passengers using student passes system-wide 
increased by 13,166, or 7.2 percent. Since the third quarter of FY2012, youth pass usage has 
spiked by more than 20,000, but fewer than 1,000 of these passengers were on booster routes. 
Of the additional youth-pass users, 73% are on Lines 2, 7, 11, & 20. This may simply mean that 
students are riding non-booster routes more than previously, but anecdotally (and more likely), it 
may indicate an ongoing problem with international students inappropriately using the Youth 
passes. 

Although UCSB student ridership was down 4.4 percent and SBCC student ridership was down 
6.3 percent for the quarter, there was one more school day in the third quarter of FY 2014 than 
in FY 2013. Per-school-day, UCSB ridership was down 6.1 percent and SBCC was down 8.7 
percent.  Total UCSB and SBCC student ridership fell by 32,117 to 572,553 for this quarter, 
which represents 30.1 percent of MTD’s ridership; down from 31.2 percent of total ridership last 
year. Non-student ridership was almost flat for the third quarter and has decreased just 1.2 
percent for the year to date. 

The apparent large year-to-date ridership decreases on Lines 23 and 25 actually reflect that the 
23 and 25 were detached from Line 11 at the end of August 2012. Ridership between UCSB 
and Storke & Hollister that was on these routes in July and August of 2012 would now be on 
Line 11, or one of the other lines serving El Colegio. Ridership decreases for the third quarter 
are proportionately similar to system-wide ridership decreases. Anecdotally, however, these two 
routes have schedule adherence issues that may also be affecting ridership. It is anticipated 
that the time added to the afternoon trips which was approved as part of the August 2014 
service changes will improve the performance of these routes.  Planning staff will continue to 
monitor the routes once the service changes are implemented.  

 As shown on page 4, total quarterly revenue hours and revenue miles operated increased by 
1.4 percent and 2.3 percent respectively from FY 2013 to FY 2014. System-wide, the average 
passengers per revenue hour decreased 3.4 percent and average passengers per revenue mile 
decreased 4.2 percent for the quarter. 

As shown on pages 7 and 8, the total number of bus trips reported as “at capacity” or “too full to 
board” declined significantly from FY 2013 (3,505 occurrences) to FY 2014 (2,655 occurrences).   

The number of bicycles carried (page 9) increased by about 1,500 (5.6 percent) from FY 2013, 
which may reflect the local and nationwide increase in bicycle use. The number of wheelchairs 
transported increased by 119 or 2.7 percent for the quarter. 

 
Operations Department 

The Operations Department tracks on-time bus departures from the Olive Street terminal (a bus 
leaving no more than five minutes past its scheduled time is considered on-time). MTD achieved 
99.8 percent on-time departures from the terminal year-to-date through the first nine months of 
FY 2014, with 51 of 25,269 buses leaving the terminal more than five minutes late. (In the 
comparable period of FY 2013, MTD achieved 99.9 percent.) Many of the late departures are 
related to minor issues discovered by the driver during the mandatory “pre-op” inspection, which 
are corrected in a few minutes. The number of late departures is kept to a minimum by MTD’s 
policy that Supervisors will cover runs if a driver arrives at work late, until such time as the 
Supervisor can be relieved. 
 
The Operations Department also tracks passenger complaints and compliments. MTD has an 
adopted standard that passenger complaints shall average no more than one complaint per 
10,000 MTD passenger boardings. MTD did significantly better than this standard, with one 

2 



3 

complaint per approximately 42,200 boardings during the third quarter. (The average for the 
third quarter of FY 2013 was one complaint per approximately 39,500 boardings.) Year-to-date 
through the first three quarters of FY 2014, MTD has received one complaint per approximately 
30,900 boardings. 
 
Maintenance Department 

The Maintenance Department tracks the cost per mile to operate MTD’s various bus fleets. 
Year-to-date through the third quarter of the fiscal year, the cost per mile for the electric shuttle 
fleet decreased from $1.56 in FY 2013 to $1.18 in FY 2014. The cost per mile for the 40-foot 
and 29-foot hybrid buses increased over the previous year. The cost per mile for the 40-foot 
diesel buses decreased compared to the previous year, while the 29-foot diesel buses 
increased. 
 
The Maintenance Department also tracks mechanical system failures (“roadcalls”) from both a 
passenger-convenience perspective and a system-efficiency perspective. MTD has two adopted 
standards related to roadcalls: 1) MTD diesel-powered revenue vehicles shall travel a minimum 
of 8,000 vehicle miles between all mechanical system failures (passenger convenience); and 
2) MTD diesel-powered revenue vehicles shall travel a minimum of 10,000 vehicle miles 
between major mechanical system failures (system efficiency). During the third quarter of FY 
2014, MTD performed better than the standard for both measures. Year-to-date through the first 
three quarters, MTD also performed better than the standard for both measures (8,733 miles 
between all failures and 13,880 miles between major failures).  Road calls related to Electric 
Vehicles have improved.  In particular, Maintenance has been utilizing the older lead-acid 
shuttles few days and miles compared to the shuttles with Ni-Cd and Lithium batteries. This 
results in few power-downs under the major mechanical failure counts.  Additionally, road calls 
for diesel buses improvement have been assisted by the fact that MTD has retired some of the 
older Nova vehicles.  New Gilligs have been used as replacements and are accumulating miles 
with fewer initial major mechanical failures. 
 
 
Human Resources/Risk Department 

The HR/Risk Department reports MTD employee turnover by quarter. The turnover rate for the 
third quarter of FY 2014 was 2.0 percent, an increase from 1.0 percent for the third quarter of 
FY 2013. HR/Risk also reports workers’ compensation claims and liability claims by quarter.  A 
comparison of the third quarter of FY 2014 to the same period in FY 2013 shows that workers’ 
compensation claims that included lost time decreased from 5 to 1, while claims with no lost 
time decreased from 4 to 1. Liability claims reportable to the National Transit Database was 
unchanged, with 0 in both FY 2013 and FY 2014, while liability claims reportable to MTD 
increased from 5 to 7. 
 

 



Planning 
 

Ridership by Fare Category (January – March 2014) 

 

Fare Categories Jan 14 - Mar 14 Jan 13 - Mar 13  % Change FY 2013-2014 FY2012- 2013 % Change

General Fare 278,775           288,748           -3.5% 899,811        908,814        -1.0%

Transfers 160,766           167,831           -4.2% 506,419        534,334        -5.2%

Full Fare Prepaid (1) 334,142           333,165           0.3% 1,018,591     1,053,610     -3.3%

Santa Barbara City College 282,877           301,776           -6.3% 862,122        908,348        -5.1%

Senior & Disabled Prepaid (2) 166,794           164,958           1.1% 515,393        513,989        0.3%

Shuttle (DWE & Seaside) 54,740             55,096             -0.6% 203,492        214,271        -5.0%

UC Santa Barbara 289,676           302,894           -4.4% 681,918        699,932        -2.6%

Youth Prepaid (3) 196,295           183,129           7.2% 548,861        502,774        9.2%

Free 47,606             54,162             -12.1% 159,340        179,403        -11.2%

My Ride / Brooks 25,440             28,827             -11.7% 91,702          99,213          -7.6%

Senior 43,992             33,099             32.9% 136,676        110,210        24.0%

Persons with Disabilities 11,155             13,903             -19.8% 36,084          45,115          -20.0%

Tokens 7,350               10,135             -27.5% 24,676          27,681          -10.9%

    Total 1,899,608        1,937,723        -2.0% 5,685,085     5,797,694     -1.9%

(1)  Includes adult 10-ride and unlimited 30-day Passport use.

(2)  Includes seniors' and persons with disabilities' 10-ride, and unlimited 30-day Passport use.

(3)  Includes K-12 Youth 10-ride and unlimited 30-day Passport use.

Source: MTD Passdat Program, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section

YTDQuarter

 
 

 

 

Revenue Hours and Revenue Miles (January – March 2014) 

 

Metrics Jan 14 - Mar 14 Jan 13 - Mar 13  %Change FY 2013-2014 FY2012- 2013 % Change

Passengers 1,899,608            1,937,723            -2.0% 5,685,085        5,797,694        -1.9%

Revenue Hours 49,733                49,030                1.4% 149,733           147,864           1.3%

Passengers per Revenue Hour 38.2 39.5 -3.4% 38.0 39.2 -3.2%

Miles 635,402               621,220               2.3% 1,902,548        1,869,221        1.8%

Passengers per Mile 3.0 3.1 -4.2% 3.0 3.1 -3.7%

YTD

   Source: MTD Passdat Program, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section

Quarter

   
 

 

 

 4



Planning 
MTD System Ridership (January – March 2014) 

 

Jan 14 - Mar 14 Jan 13 - Mar 13  % Change FY 2013-2014 FY 2012-2013 % Change

1 West Santa Barbara 99,936                  108,213                -7.6% 311,419          332,929          -6.5%

2 East Santa Barbara 164,640                167,156                -1.5% 502,786          505,258          -0.5%

3 Oak Park 56,201                  60,844                  -7.6% 177,489          188,856          -6.0%

4 Mesa / SBCC 41,636                  42,104                  -1.1% 125,310          127,335          -1.6%

5 Mesa / La Cumbre 50,700                  51,747                  -2.0% 157,730          158,670          -0.6%

6 Goleta 178,371                177,718                0.4% 543,910          552,415          -1.5%

7 County Health / Fairview 38,975                  38,940                  0.1% 117,808          115,258          2.2%

8 County Health 30,321                  30,856                  -1.7% 96,503            94,450            2.2%

9 Calle Real / Old Town Shuttle 8,892                    10,091                  -11.9% 28,084            29,835            -5.9%

10 Cathedral Oaks 7,977                    6,747                    18.2% 21,363            20,379            4.8%

11 UCSB 318,034                315,719                0.7% 926,051          907,629          2.0%

12x Goleta Express 69,773                  74,973                  -6.9% 216,499          227,983          -5.0%

14 Montecito 26,623                  27,344                  -2.6% 82,955            84,532            -1.9%

15x SBCC / UCSB Express 86,375                  89,048                  -3.0% 268,378          266,843          0.6%

16 City College Shuttle 36,093                  35,901                  0.5% 105,479          116,922          -9.8%

17 Lower West / SBCC 52,297                  56,102                  -6.8% 160,309          173,333          -7.5%

20 Carpinteria 88,713                  88,499                  0.2% 274,354          274,969          -0.2%

21x Carpinteria Express 27,243                  29,568                  -7.9% 81,547            88,615            -8.0%

22 Old Mission 5,572                    5,819                    -4.2% 17,273            17,235            0.2%

23 Winchester Canyon 20,513                  22,399                  -8.4% 61,544            80,108            -23.2%

24x UCSB Express 178,082                187,839                -5.2% 498,586          514,568          -3.1%

25 Ellwood 14,406                  13,734                  4.9% 42,632            51,130            -16.6%

27 Isla Vista Shuttle 94,017                  98,318                  -4.4% 214,649          212,740          0.9%

36 Seaside Shuttle 16,682                  16,514                  1.0% 51,530            52,256            -1.4%

37 Crosstown Shuttle 20,342                  21,759                  -6.5% 63,037            70,151            -10.1%

Booster Services 74,136                  74,285                  -0.2% 194,503          193,590          0.5%

1,806,550             1,852,237             -2.5% 5,341,728       5,457,989       -2.1%

30 Downtown Shuttle 66,359                  61,267                  8.3% 248,186          251,104          -1.2%

31 East Beach Waterfront Shuttle 9,259                    9,460                    -2.1% 40,896            43,431            -5.8%

32 West Beach Waterfront Shuttle 6,595                    3,901                    69.1% 20,367            17,052            19.4%

86,87 Limited - Santa Barbara 5,242                    5,316                    -1.4% 16,857            14,217            18.6%

88,89 Limited - Goleta 5,603                    5,542                    1.1% 17,051            13,861            23.0%

-                            -                            0.0% -                      40                   -100.0%

   System Total 1,899,608             1,937,723             -2.0% 5,685,085       5,797,694       -1.9%

   20, 21x Carpinteria 115,956                      118,067                      -1.8% 355,901               363,584               -2.1%

   1, 2, 37 East/West & Crosstown 284,918                      297,128                      -4.1% 877,242               908,338               -3.4%

   4, 5, 15x, 16, 17 Mesa Lines 267,101                      274,902                      -2.8% 817,206               843,103               -3.1%

   6, 11 State/Hollister 496,405                      493,437                      0.6% 1,469,961            1,460,044            0.7%

   7, 8, 9 Calle Real/Fairview 78,188                        79,887                        -2.1% 242,395               239,543               1.2%

Source: MTD Passdat Program, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section

Related Routes

YTDQuarter

LINE

   System Subtotal

Unknown

Coastal Express Limited

Downtown Waterfront Shuttles

 

 5



Planning 
MTD Passengers per Revenue Hour (January – March 2014) 

Jan 14 - Mar 14 Jan 13 - Mar 13  %Change FY 2013-2014 FY 2012-2013 % Change

1 West Santa Barbara 37.3 40.5 -7.7% 38.5 42.6 -9.7%

2 East Santa Barbara 46.9 47.7 -1.6% 47.3 46.9 0.7%

3 Oak Park 28.8 31.2 -7.6% 30.1 32.1 -6.3%

4 Mesa / SBCC 36.4 36.9 -1.5% 36.2 37.1 -2.2%

5 Mesa / La Cumbre 29.3 29.9 -2.0% 30.2 30.4 -0.8%

6 Goleta 37.2 37.0 0.6% 37.6 37.9 -0.8%

7 County Health / Fairview 31.5 31.6 -0.3% 31.4 30.9 1.7%

8 County Health 33.1 33.6 -1.7% 34.7 34.1 1.8%

9 Calle Real / Old Town Shuttle 14.1 16.4 -14.2% 14.8 16.0 -7.7%

10 Cathedral Oaks 21.0 17.8 18.3% 18.6 17.8 4.3%

11 UCSB 41.5 41.1 0.9% 40.0 41.3 -3.2%

12x Goleta Express 44.2 49.3 -10.2% 45.7 49.7 -8.0%

14 Montecito 21.3 21.9 -2.6% 22.1 22.6 -2.3%

15x SBCC / UCSB Express 49.5 59.3 -16.5% 51.7 57.7 -10.4%

16 City College Shuttle 84.2 88.6 -5.0% 84.4 96.1 -12.2%

17 Lower West / SBCC 65.5 70.7 -7.4% 66.4 72.4 -8.3%

20 Carpinteria 26.6 26.5 0.3% 27.2 27.3 -0.4%

21x Carpinteria Express 25.5 27.7 -7.9% 25.3 27.6 -8.5%

22 Old Mission 13.9 14.1 -1.6% 14.3 13.6 5.0%

23 Winchester Canyon 24.8 27.2 -8.9% 24.6 26.3 -6.5%

24x UCSB Express 66.1 75.0 -11.8% 64.3 70.0 -8.1%

25 Ellwood 38.1 35.7 6.7% 37.3 32.2 16.0%

27 Isla Vista Shuttle 50.5 53.1 -4.8% 43.9 43.6 0.6%

36 Seaside Shuttle 16.0 15.8 1.3% 16.3 16.5 -1.4%

37 Crosstown Shuttle 20.3 21.7 -6.5% 20.8 23.2 -10.6%

Booster Services 87.5 95.5 -8.3% 93.2 93.9 -0.8%

39.4 40.9 -3.7% 39.0 40.3 -3.3%

30 Downtown Shuttle 26.2 24.8 5.8% 29.4 30.5 -3.5%

31 East Beach Waterfront Shuttle 18.9 19.3 -2.2% 22.1 23.0 -4.0%

32 West Beach Waterfront Shuttle 23.7 16.3 45.8% 22.4 19.0 18.2%

86,87 Limited - Santa Barbara 22.3 24.5 -9.1% 24.1 21.8 10.9%

88,89 Limited - Goleta 21.5 22.2 -2.8% 21.8 18.4 18.5%

0.0 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.7 -100.0%

   System Total 38.2 39.5 -3.4% 38.0 39.2 -3.2%

   20, 21x Carpinteria 26.3 26.8 -1.8% 26.7 27.4 -2.3%

   1, 2, 37 East/West & Crosstown 39.6 41.4 -4.2% 40.3 42.1 -4.2%

   4, 5, 15x, 16, 17 Mesa Lines 45.7 49.3 -7.4% 46.6 49.9 -6.7%

   6, 11 State/Hollister 39.9 39.5 0.8% 39.1 39.9 -2.2%

   7, 8, 9 Calle Real 28.1 28.9 -2.8% 28.8 28.6 0.4%

Source: MTD Passdat Program, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section

YTD

Coastal Express Limited

Quarter

LINE

   System Subtotal

Downtown Waterfront Shuttles

Related Routes

Unknown

 

 6



Planning 
MTD ‘At Capacity’ Loads* (January – March 2014) 

 

Jan 14 - Mar 14 Jan 13 - Mar 13  % Change FY 2013-2014 FY 2012-2013 % Change

1 West Santa Barbara 19                       17                       11.8% 71                       157                     -54.8%

2 East Santa Barbara 58                       93                       -37.6% 209                     304                     -31.3%

3 Oak Park 27                       10                       170.0% 50                       62                       -19.4%

4 Mesa / SBCC 6                         2                         200.0% 10                       14                       -28.6%

5 Mesa / La Cumbre 46                       57                       -19.3% 153                     133                     15.0%

6 Goleta 42                       146                     -71.2% 198                     309                     -35.9%

7 County Health / Fairview 35                       42                       -16.7% 199                     128                     55.5%

8 County Health 6                         3                         100.0% 59                       11                       436.4%

9 Calle Real / Old Town Shuttle -                          1                         -100.0% 1                         1                         0.0%

10 Cathedral Oaks 3                         -                          100.0% 6                         6                         0.0%

11 UCSB 262                     447                     -41.4% 811                     809                     0.2%

12x Goleta Express 23                       60                       -61.7% 129                     197                     -34.5%

14 Montecito 4                         6                         -33.3% 20                       16                       25.0%

15x SBCC / UCSB Express 204                     149                     36.9% 607                     383                     58.5%

16 City College Shuttle 19                       30                       -36.7% 164                     214                     -23.4%

17 Lower West / SBCC 24                       39                       -38.5% 74                       98                       -24.5%

20 Carpinteria 30                       36                       -16.7% 74                       157                     -52.9%

21x Carpinteria Express 23                       27                       -14.8% 51                       49                       4.1%

22 Old Mission 1                         -                          100.0% 1                         -                          100.0%

23 Winchester Canyon 1                         10                       -90.0% 30                       21                       42.9%

24x UCSB Express 192                     333                     -42.3% 658                     867                     -24.1%

25 Ellwood -                          4                         -100.0% 1                         9                         -88.9%

27 Isla Vista Shuttle 85                       222                     -61.7% 149                     363                     -59.0%

36 Seaside Shuttle 1                         3                         -66.7% 5                         5                         0.0%

37 Crosstown Shuttle 7                         1                         600.0% 9                         20                       -55.0%

Booster Services 77                       154                     -50.0% 169                     319                     -47.0%

1,195                  1,892                  -36.8% 3,908                  4,652                  -16.0%

30 Downtown Shuttle 129                     271                     -52.4% 476                     634                     -24.9%

31 East Beach Waterfront Shuttle 3                         14                       -78.6% 11                       22                       -50.0%

32 West Beach Waterfront Shuttle 13                       -                          100.0% 16                       2                         700.0%

86,87 Limited - Santa Barbara -                          -                          0.0% -                          -                          0.0%

88,89 Limited - Goleta -                          -                          0.0% -                          -                          0.0%

   20, 21x Carpinteria 53                       63                       -15.9% 125                     206                     -39.3%

   1, 2, 37 East/West & Crosstown 84                       111                     -24.3% 289                     481                     -39.9%

   4,  5, 15x, 16, 17 Mesa Lines 299                     277                     7.9% 1,008                  842                     19.7%

   6, 11 State/Hollister 304                     593                     -48.7% 1,009                  1,118                  -9.7%

   7, 8, 9 Calle Real, Fairview 41                       46                       -10.9% 259                     140                     85.0%

1                         3                         -66.7% 1                         6                         -83.3%

System Total 1,341                  2,180                  -38.5% 4,412                  5,316                  -17.0%

* Classified as a 30-foot vehicle with 10 or more standees, or a 40-foot vehicle with 20 or more standees.

Source: GFI Genfare, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section

Quarter Year to Date

LINE

   System Subtotal

Downtown Waterfront Shuttles

Unknown/Miscellaneous

Coastal Express Limited

Related Routes

 
 

 7



Planning 
MTD ‘Too Full to Board’ Loads* (January – March 2014) 

 

Jan 14 - Mar 14 Jan 13 - Mar 13  % Change FY 2013-2014 FY 2012-2013 % Change

1 West Santa Barbara 6                         8                         -25.0% 29                       71                       -59.2%

2 East Santa Barbara 13                       12                       8.3% 79                       112                     -29.5%

3 Oak Park 5                         -                      100.0% 9                         14                       -35.7%

4 Mesa / SBCC 4                         3                         33.3% 12                       9                         33.3%

5 Mesa / La Cumbre 41                       39                       5.1% 105                     125                     -16.0%

6 Goleta 49                       35                       40.0% 152                     125                     21.6%

7 County Health / Fairview 18                       21                       -14.3% 74                       40                       85.0%

8 County Health -                          1                         -100.0% 2                         2                         0.0%

9 Calle Real / Old Town Shuttle -                          -                          0.0% 1                         -                          100.0%

10 Cathedral Oaks -                          -                          0.0% -                          5                         -100.0%

11 UCSB 207                     144                     43.8% 536                     429                     24.9%

12x Goleta Express 12                       16                       -25.0% 56                       103                     -45.6%

14 Montecito 4                         3                         33.3% 6                         7                         -14.3%

15x SBCC / UCSB Express 233                     276                     -15.6% 801                     848                     -5.5%

16 City College Shuttle 71                       79                       -10.1% 142                     181                     -21.5%

17 Lower West / SBCC 18                       33                       -45.5% 62                       84                       -26.2%

20 Carpinteria 3                         1                         200.0% 25                       18                       38.9%

21x Carpinteria Express 21                       3                         600.0% 21                       9                         133.3%

22 Old Mission 1                         -                          100.0% 1                         1                         0.0%

23 Winchester Canyon -                      4                         -100.0% 23                       15                       53.3%

24x UCSB Express 217                     249                     -12.9% 663                     1,040                  -36.3%

25 Ellwood -                          4                         -100.0% 2                         5                         -60.0%

27 Isla Vista Shuttle 121                     178                     -32.0% 230                     298                     -22.8%

36 Seaside Shuttle -                          1                         -100.0% 1                         8                         -87.5%

37 Crosstown Shuttle 8                         2                         300.0% 15                       15                       0.0%

Booster Services 66                       62                       6.5% 241                     241                     0.0%

1,118                  1,174                  -4.8% 3,288                  3,805                  -13.6%

30 Downtown Shuttle 166                     146                     13.7% 889                     1,055                  -15.7%

31 East Beach Waterfront Shuttle 12                       5                         140.0% 57                       39                       46.2%

32 West Beach Waterfront Shuttle 15                       -                          100.0% 27                       11                       145.5%

86,87 Limited - Santa Barbara -                          -                          0.0% -                          -                          0.0%

88,89 Limited - Goleta -                          -                          0.0% -                          1                         -100.0%

   20, 21x Carpinteria 24                       4                         500.0% 46                       27                       70.4%

   1, 2, 37 East/West & Crosstown 27                       22                       22.7% 123                     198                     -37.9%

   4,  5, 15x, 16, 17 Mesa Lines 367                     430                     -14.7% 1,122                  1,247                  -10.0%

   6, 11 State/Hollister 256                     179                     43.0% 688                     554                     24.2%

   7, 8, 9 Calle Real, Fairview 18                       22                       -18.2% 77                       42                       83.3%

3                         -                          100.0% 8                         8                         0.0%

System Total 1,314                  1,325                  -0.8% 4,269                  4,919                  -13.2%

* Indicates that passengers were refused service because a vehicle was too full to safely board additional riders.

Source: GFI Genfare, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section

Unknown/Miscellaneous

Downtown Waterfront Shuttles

Year to Date

Coastal Express Limited

Related Routes

Quarter

LINE

   System Subtotal

 
 

 8



Planning 
 

MTD Bicycles Carried (January – March 2014) 
 

Jan 14 - Mar 14 Jan 14 - Mar14  % Change FY 2013-2014 FY 2012-2013 % Change

1 West Santa Barbara 635                    606                    4.8% 2,083                 1,953                 6.7%

2 East Santa Barbara 1,555                 1,807                 -13.9% 5,173                 5,407                 -4.3%

3 Oak Park 473                    479                    -1.3% 1,553                 1,788                 -13.1%

4 Mesa / SBCC 632                    553                    14.3% 1,745                 1,671                 4.4%

5 Mesa / La Cumbre 1,014                 894                    13.4% 3,255                 2,609                 24.8%

6 Goleta 4,393                 4,400                 -0.2% 13,624               12,816               6.3%

7 County Health / Fairview 788                    819                    -3.8% 2,512                 2,055                 22.2%

8 County Health 634                    527                    20.3% 1,935                 1,353                 43.0%

9 Calle Real / Old Town Shuttle 117                    131                    -10.7% 345                    343                    0.6%

10 Cathedral Oaks 263                    167                    57.5% 543                    445                    22.0%

11 UCSB 6,962                 6,120                 13.8% 20,591               17,755               16.0%

12x Goleta Express 2,019                 1,944                 3.9% 6,440                 6,498                 -0.9%

14 Montecito 524                    399                    31.3% 1,507                 1,252                 20.4%

15x SBCC / UCSB Express 957                    924                    3.6% 3,212                 2,347                 36.9%

16 City College Shuttle 399                    205                    94.6% 1,058                 701                    50.9%

17 Lower West / SBCC 377                    378                    -0.3% 1,122                 1,196                 -6.2%

20 Carpinteria 1,859                 1,807                 2.9% 5,868                 5,742                 2.2%

21x Carpinteria Express 792                    868                    -8.8% 2,106                 2,349                 -10.3%

22 Old Mission 246                    210                    17.1% 541                    490                    10.4%

23 Winchester Canyon 336                    309                    8.7% 1,059                 1,047                 1.1%

24x UCSB Express 3,267                 2,722                 20.0% 10,475               9,659                 8.4%

25 Ellwood 293                    310                    -5.5% 994                    1,038                 -4.2%

27 Isla Vista Shuttle 737                    998                    -26.2% 1,793                 2,177                 -17.6%

36 Seaside Shuttle 1 -                         -                         N/A -                         -                         N/A

37 Crosstown Shuttle 1 -                         -                         N/A -                         -                         N/A

Booster Services 85                      156                    -45.5% 169                    417                    -59.5%

29,357               27,733               5.9% 89,703               83,108               7.9%

30 State Street Shuttle -                         -                         N/A -                         -                         N/A

31 East Beach Waterfront Shuttle -                         -                         N/A -                         -                         N/A

32 West Beach Waterfront Shuttle -                         -                         N/A -                         -                         N/A

86,87 Limited - Santa Barbara 27                      78                      -65.4% 130                    221                    -41.2%

88,89 Limited - Goleta 50                      55                      -9.1% 174                    309                    -43.7%

   20, 21x Carpinteria 2,651                 2,675                 -0.9% 7,974                 8,091                 -1.4%

   1,2,37 East/West & Crosstown 2,190                 2,413                 -9.2% 7,256                 7,360                 -1.4%

   4, 5, 15x, 16, 17 Mesa Lines 3,379                 2,954                 14.4% 10,392               8,524                 21.9%

   6,11 State/Hollister 11,355               10,520               7.9% 34,215               30,571               11.9%

   7, 8, 9 Calle Real/Fairview 1,539                 1,477                 4.2% 4,792                 3,751                 27.8%

38                      48                      -20.8% 142                    135                    5.2%

System Total 29,472               27,914               5.6% 90,149               83,773               7.6%

1 MTD electric shuttles cannot carry bicycles.

Source: GFI Genfare, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section

Quarter Year to Date

LINE

System Subtotal

Downtown Waterfront Shuttles  1

Unknown/Miscellaneous

Coastal Express Limited

Related Routes

 
 
 

 9



Planning 
 

MTD Wheelchairs Boarded (January – March 2014) 
 

Jan 14 - Mar 14 Jan 14 - Mar 14  % Change FY 2013-2014 FY 2012-2013 % Change

1 West Santa Barbara 214                    245                    -12.7% 698                    955                    -26.9%

2 East Santa Barbara 419                    478                    -12.3% 1,387                 1,552                 -10.6%

3 Oak Park 383                    300                    27.7% 1,151                 1,072                 7.4%

4 Mesa / SBCC 29                      18                      61.1% 66                      81                      -18.5%

5 Mesa / La Cumbre 282                    154                    83.1% 857                    445                    92.6%

6 Goleta 619                    698                    -11.3% 1,795                 2,186                 -17.9%

7 County Health / Fairview 270                    192                    40.6% 919                    486                    89.1%

8 County Health 212                    121                    75.2% 691                    372                    85.8%

9 Calle Real / Old Town Shuttle 45                      87                      -48.3% 125                    268                    -53.4%

10 Cathedral Oaks 2                        27                      -92.6% 9                        70                      -87.1%

11 UCSB 768                    879                    -12.6% 2,275                 2,374                 -4.2%

12x Goleta Express 196                    248                    -21.0% 573                    821                    -30.2%

14 Montecito 102                    50                      104.0% 286                    158                    81.0%

15x SBCC / UCSB Express 4                        23                      -82.6% 33                      61                      -45.9%

16 City College Shuttle 98                      46                      113.0% 178                    191                    -6.8%

17 Lower West / SBCC 57                      33                      72.7% 167                    122                    36.9%

20 Carpinteria 270                    323                    -16.4% 1,137                 1,166                 -2.5%

21x Carpinteria Express 117                    65                      80.0% 308                    256                    20.3%

22 Old Mission 4                        7                        -42.9% 14                      12                      16.7%

23 Winchester Canyon 36                      29                      24.1% 148                    79                      87.3%

24x UCSB Express 55                      79                      -30.4% 197                    309                    -36.2%

25 Ellwood 82                      63                      30.2% 242                    134                    80.6%

27 Isla Vista Shuttle 27                      10                      170.0% 74                      57                      29.8%

36 Seaside Shuttle 4                        8                        -50.0% 19                      38                      -50.0%

37 Crosstown Shuttle 14                      46                      -69.6% 70                      133                    -47.4%

Booster Services 2                        7                        -71.4% 5                        14                      -64.3%

4,311                 4,236                 1.8% 13,424               13,412               0.1%

30 State Street Shuttle 194                    138                    40.6% 685                    525                    30.5%

31 East Beach Waterfront Shuttle 28                      30                      -6.7% 110                    163                    -32.5%

32 West Beach Waterfront Shuttle 18                      29                      -37.9% 47                      127                    -63.0%

86,87 Limited - Santa Barbara -                         -                         0.0% -                         3                        -100.0%

88,89 Limited - Goleta -                         -                         0.0% -                         -                         0.0%

   20, 21x Carpinteria 387                    388                    -0.3% 1,445                 1,422                 1.6%

   1, 2, 37 East/West & Crosstown 647                    769                    -15.9% 2,155                 2,640                 -18.4%

   4, 5, 15x, 16, 17 Mesa Lines 470                    274                    71.5% 1,301                 900                    44.6%

   6, 11 State/Hollister 1,387                 1,577                 -12.0% 4,070                 4,560                 -10.7%

   7, 8, 9 Calle Real/Fairview 527                    400                    31.8% 1,735                 1,126                 54.1%

5                        4                        25.0% 16                      15                      6.7%

System Total 4,556                 4,437                 2.7% 14,282               14,245               0.3%

Source: GFI Genfare, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section

Quarter Year to Date

LINE

System Subtotal

Downtown Waterfront Shuttles

Unknown/Miscellaneous

Coastal Express Limited

Related Routes

 
 
 

 10



Starts         
(from terminal) Total 

Trips

Missed/ 
Late Starts 
(missing 
driver)

Missed/ 
Late Starts 
(operations   

error)

Late Starts  
(bus failure) Total 

Trips

Missed/ 
Late Starts 
(missing 
driver)

Missed/ 
Late Starts 
(operations   

error)

Late Starts  
(bus failure)

Weekday AM 4,632 0 1(3) 7(2) 4,758 0 0 13(2)
Weekday PM 2,421 0 1(3) 0 2,379 0 2(3) 2(2)
Saturday 675 0 0 1(2) 672 0 0 0
Sunday 574 0 0 7(2) 532 0 0 0
Quarter Totals 8,302 0 2 15 8,341 0 2 15

Starts         
(from terminal) Total

Missed/ 
Late Starts 
(missing 
driver)

Missed/ 
Late Starts 
(operations   

error)

Late Starts  
(bus failure)

Total

Missed/ 
Late Starts 
(missing 
driver)

Missed/ 
Late Starts 
(operations   

error)

Late Starts  
(bus failure)

Weekday AM 14,231 4 2 24 13,742 0 1(3) 18(2)
Weekday PM 7,346 0 3 2 7,364 2(1) 4(3) 4(2)
Saturday 1959 0 0 3 1801 3(1) 0 0
Sunday 1733 1 1 11 1748 4(1) 0 0
YTD Totals 25,269 5 6 40 24,655 9 5 22

(1)  Driver minimally late

(2)  Minor maintenance problems requiring repair prior to leaving for start of service.

   
(3)  Incidents/accidents

FY 2013-2014 FY 2012-2013

AM/PM Startup for January, February, March 

Transit Operations

AM/PM Startup YTD 

FY 2013-2014 FY 2012-2013

11



Compliments
Month Passenger 

Relations
Driving 

Observations
Schedule/ 

Policy
Missed 

Passengers
Complaints Total Monthly 

per Passenger 
Boarding Jan. - 

March 2014

Total Monthly per 
Passenger 

Boarding Jan. - 
March 2013

January 4 2 6 5 17 1/36,634 7 1/47,605 1
February 3 0 5 3 11 1/58,404 1/47,924 0

March 6 1 6 4 17 1/37,315 1/30,495 1
Quarter 

Total
13 3 17 12 45 1/42,213 1/39,543

Complaints Compliments

Current FY    
13-14 YTD    

184 22

Prior FY      
12-13 YTD    

204 37

Definitions:

Passenger Relations: Perceived negative treatment of passengers by an MTD Employee.

Driving Observations: Concerns regarding driving safety.

Schedule/Policy: Missed trips, frequency of service, transfer policy, etc.

Missed Passengers: Complaints that passengers were passed up at MTD authorized stops.

Compliments: Documented praise of MTD Employee’s actions.

** No significant trending comparing previous fiscal year or quarters.  Complaint ratios fall well within 
    District standard of 1/10,000, and improved over previous quarter.

 Complaints      (January, February, March 2014)

Transit Operations

 12



Transit Operations 
 

 
 

Fleet Facts 
 

EV Fleet Number in Fleet Battery Type Traction 

EV’s 3 -11 6 Lead Acid DC Drive 
EV’s 13, 15 – 17 & 20 – 21, 26-
28 9 Ni-Cad AC Drive 

EV’s 12, 14, 18 & 19 4 LiFePO4 AC Drive 
 

Fleet Consumption Statistics 
 

Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014 (March 31, 2014) 
Miles KWH MPK Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

41,265 65,084 0.63 $18,890 $12,525 $1.11 

 
 

Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2013 (March 31, 2013) 
Miles KWH MPK Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

40,038 63,509 0.63 $32,948 $15,335 $1.56 

 
Fiscal Year 2014 to Date (March 31, 2014) 

Miles KWH MPK Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

131,182 204,362 0.64 $67,389 $41,700 $1.18 

 
Fiscal Year 2013 to Date (March 31, 2013) 

Miles KWH MPK Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

127,637 206,580 0.62 $103,311 $49,277 $1.56 

NOTE: EV’s 1, 2, 10 & 22 retired & EV’s 26, 27 & 28 added at various dates during FY 2013  

 13



Transit Operations 
 

 
 

Nova 400 Series Fleet Facts 
 

Diesel Fleet Number in Fleet Engine Transmission

1998 Nova LFS 40 15 Detroit Diesel Series 40 inline 6 Allison B400R

2000 Nova LFS 40 2 Detroit Diesel Series 40 inline 6 Allison B400R
 
 

Fleet Consumption Statistics 
 

Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014 (March 31, 2014)  See NOTE below 
Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

91,439 4.41 $66,091 $34,561 $20,175 $1.32 

 
Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2013 (March 31, 2013) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

181,135 4.22 $144,368 $40,016 $27,055 $1.17 

 
Fiscal Year 2014 to Date (March 31, 2014)  Ten (10) buses retired YTD 
Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

409,517 4.27 $316,413 $81,741 $63,479 $1.13 

 
Fiscal Year 2013 to Date (March 31, 2013) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

547,017 4.22 $444,230 $127,939 $85,991 $1.20 

NOTE:  One of eleven (11) buses retired in FY 2014 Q2 was reactivated this Quarter  

 14



Transit Operations 
 

 
 

Gillig 700 Series Fleet Facts  
 

Diesel Fleet Number in Fleet Engine Type Transmission

2004 Gillig LF 29 14 Cummins ISB inline 6 Allison B300R
 
 

Fleet Consumption Statistics 
 

Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014 (March 31, 2014) 
Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

103,030 4.60 $71,355 $30,741 $15,952 $1.15 

 
Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2013 (March 31, 2013) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

115,912 4.63 $83,720 $26,582 $13,231 $1.07 

 
Fiscal Year 2014 to Date (March 31, 2014) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

304,219 4.60 $217,694 $107,302 $48,526 $1.23 

 
Fiscal Year 2013 to Date (March 31, 2013) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

323,677 4.53 $244,344 $84,960 $42,699 $1.15 

 

 15



Transit Operations 
 

 
 

Gillig 700 Hybrid Series Fleet Facts 
 

Diesel Fleet Number in Fleet Engine Transmission

2009 Gillig Hybrid LF 29 3 Cummins ISB Inline  6 Allison EP40 
 
 

Fleet Consumption Statistics 
 

Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014 (March 31, 2014) 
Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

11,049 5.24 $6,671 $5,761 $2,862 $1.38 

 
Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2013 (March 31, 2013) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

12,613 5.52 $7,698 $459 $856 $0.71 

 
Fiscal Year 2014 to Date (March 31, 2014) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

36,688 5.25 $23,233 $11,721 $7,844 $1.17 

 
Fiscal Year 2013 to Date (March 31, 2013) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

38,374 5.64 $23,891 $2,447 $2,571 $0.75 

 

 16



Transit Operations 
 

 
 

Fleet Facts  
Diesel Fleet Number in Fleet Engine Type Transmission

2004 Gillig LF 40 15 Detroit Diesel Series 50 inline 4 Allison B400R

2011 Gillig LF 40 7  Cummins ISL Allison B400R

2013 Gillig LF 40 13  Cummins ISL Allison B400R

 
Fleet Consumption Statistics 

 
Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014 (March 31, 2014)  Two new buses added this Qtr 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

347,9490 4.54 $245,845 
 

$45,230 
 

$32,978 
 

$0.93 
 

 
Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2013 (March 31, 2013) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

213,085 4.41 $165,107 
 

$38,771 
 

$23,160 
 

$1.07 
 

 
Fiscal Year 2014 to Date (March 31, 2014) Thirteen (13) new buses added YTD 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

838,868 4.48 $619,106 
 

$148,692 
 

$92,060 
 

$1.03 
 

 
Fiscal Year 2013 to Date (March 31, 2013) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

602,850 4.36 $481,649 
 

$113,959 
 

$69,829 
 

$1.10 
 

 
 17



Transit Operations 
 

 

 

 
Gillig 900 Hybrid Series Fleet Facts 

 

Diesel Fleet Number in Fleet Engine Transmission

2007 Gillig Hybrid LF 40 8 Cummins ISB Inline  6 Allison EP40 

2011 Gillig Hybrid LF 40 7 (New) Cummins ISB Inline  6 Allison EP40 
 
 

Fleet Consumption Statistics 
 

Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014 (March 31, 2014) 
Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

130,779 5.37 $77,540 
 

$16,118 
 

$12,755 
 

$0.81 
 

 
Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2013 (March 31, 2013) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

141,745 5.55 $85,606 
 

$14,066 
 

$12,395 
 

$0.79 
 

 
Fiscal Year 2014 to Date (March 31, 2014) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

429,826 5.32 $266,789 
 

$62,608 
 

$47,578 
 

$0.88 
 

 
Fiscal Year 2013 to Date (March 31, 2013) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

453,730 5.44 $288,161 
 

$44,624 
 

$36,703 
 

$0.81 
 

 18



Transit Operations 

 
 

MCI 800 Series Fleet Facts 
Diesel Fleet Number in Fleet Engine Transmission

2004 MCI D4000 40 3 Detroit Diesel Series 60 inline 6 Allison B500 

2004 MCI D4500 45 2 Detroit Diesel Series 60 inline 6 Allison B500 
 

Fleet Consumption Statistics 
 

Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014 (March 31, 2014) 
Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

25,177 4.73 $16,617 $4,409 $4,272 $1.00 

 
Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2013 (March 31, 2013) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

25,407 4.79 $17,832 $14,111 $2,910 $1.37 

 
Fiscal Year 2014 to Date (March 31, 2014) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

76,830 4.62 $54,506 $12,776 $11,264 $1.02 

 
Fiscal Year 2013 to Date (March 31, 2013) 

Miles MPG Fuel/Oil Parts Labor Cost per Mile 

76,236 4.76 $54,535 $22,230 $10,203 $1.14 

 19
 



Fleet Fiscal Year

All
Mechanical 

System 
Failures

Major
Mechanical 

System 
Failures

Accumulated 
Miles

Miles between
All Mechanical

System Failures

Miles between
Major Mechanical
System Failures

Electric 2013/2014 31 26 41,265 1,331 1,587
Vehicles (EVs)

2012/2013 70 66 40,038 572 607
400 Nova 2013/2014 9 2 91,439 10,160 45,720
40 ft

2012/2013 20 11 181,135 9,057 16,467
600 Gillig 2013/2014 28 15 347,949 12,427 23,197
40 ft

2012/2013 20 14 213,085 10,654 15,220
700 Gillig 2013/2014 18 11 103,030 5,724 9,366
29 ft

2012/2013 18 13 115,912 6,440 8,916
700 Gillig 2013/2014 4 3 11,049 2,762 3,683
29 ft Hybrid

2012/2013 0 0 12,356 None this Qtr None this Qtr
800 MCI 2013/2014 0 0 25,177 None this Qtr None this Qtr
45 & 40 ft

2012/2013 0 0 25,407 None this Qtr None this Qtr
900 Gillig 2013/2014 2 0 130,779 65,390 None this Qtr
40 ft Hybrid

2012/2013 8 2 141,745 17,718 70,873

System Total - 2013/2014 61 31 709,423 11,630 22,885
Excluding EVs

2012/2013 66 40 689,640 10,449 17,241
System Total - 2013/2014 92 57 750,688 8,160 13,170
All Vehicles

2012/2013 136 106 729,678 5,365 6,884

Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District
FY 2014 National Transit Database Roadcalls ("Mechanical System Failures") - Third Quarter

20



Fleet Fiscal Year

All
Mechanical 

System 
Failures

Major
Mechanical 

System 
Failures

Accumulated 
Miles

Miles between
All Mechanical

System Failures

Miles between
Major Mechanical
System Failures

Electric 2013/2014 143 126 131,182 917 1,041
Vehicles (EVs)

2012/2013 194 181 127,637 658 705
400 Nova 2013/2014 49 27 409,517 8,357 15,167
40 ft

2012/2013 79 54 547,017 6,924 10,130
600 Gillig 2013/2014 80 56 838,868 10,486 14,980
40 ft

2012/2013 60 47 602,850 10,048 12,827
700 Gillig 2013/2014 65 42 304,219 4,680 7,243
29 ft

2012/2013 51 34 323,677 6,347 9,520
700 Gillig 2013/2014 6 4 36,688 6,115 9,172
29 ft Hybrid

2012/2013 1 1 38,374 38,374 38,374
800 MCI 2013/2014 0 0 76,830 None YTD None YTD
45 & 40 ft

2012/2013 1 0 76,236 76,236 None YTD
900 Gillig 2013/2014 40 22 429,826 10,746 19,538
40 ft Hybrid

2012/2013 28 15 453,730 16,205 30,249

System Total - 2013/2014 240 151 2,095,948 8,733 13,880
Excluding EVs

2012/2013 220 151 2,041,884 9,281 13,522
System Total - 2013/2014 383 277 2,227,130 5,815 8,040
All Vehicles

2012/2013 414 332 2,169,521 5,240 6,535

Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District
FY 2014 National Transit Database Roadcalls ("Mechanical System Failures") - Third Quarter YTD

21



MTD Turnover Rate 
2011-2014

Third 
Quarter  

2011

Third 
Quarter 

2012

Third 
Quarter 

2013
Third Quarter 

2014

Staff 0% 6% 0% 3%

Drivers 1% 1% 1% 2%

Service Workers 0% 0% 0% 0%

Mechanics 0% 0% 0% 0%

Overall % Totals 1% 1% 1% 2%

Management & Administration

January through March 2014

 22



Workers' Compensation 
Claims                  

(employee injury)

Temporary Disability 
(lost time)

No Lost time          
(first aid only)

January - March 2011 0 2

January - March 2012 2 2

January - March 2013 5 4

January - March 2014 1 1

Liability Claims           
(bus accidents)

Reportable to National 
Transit Data Base

Reportable to MTD

January - March 2011 1 6

January - March 2012 0 9

January - March 2013 0 5

January - March 2014 0 7

Workers' Compensation Claims

Liability Claims

Management & Administration
January through March 2014

 23



Gross Revenue Total Discounts 
(Agency 15%)

Net Revenue

$122,275.00 ($12,889.05) $109,385.95 

Gross Revenue Total Discounts
 (Agency 15%)

Net Revenue

$118,127.00 ($10,534.80) $107,592.20 

*2013 Total Advertising Revenue: $485,553.00    
*2014 Total Advertising Revenue:$445,009.75(Sold as of 5/1/14)

*Agency Discount: MTD currently provides a 15% discount off of the current advertising rates 
for agencies that bring advertising clients to MTD. 

Current: 3rd Quarter 2014 Advertising Revenue

Past: 3rd Quarter 2013 Advertising Revenue 

Marketing-Advertising Sales
January through March 2014

 24



Transit Finance 
Compliance Report for Quarter Ending March 31, 2014 

 
As a recipient of Federal funds from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), 
the Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District (MTD) is subject to a number 
of rules and regulations. This report describes actions taken between January 1 
and March 31, 2014, to address these requirements. 
 
MTD Compliance Actions 
 
The required FTA Triennial Review of MTD is underway. The reviewer will be on 
site for two days in June. The Triennial Review examines MTD's compliance with 
FTA rules. 
 
Submitted revisions to MTD’s FY 2013 National Transit Database Annual Report 
to FTA, as required. 
 
Submitted MTD and Easy Lift monthly National Transit Database Safety and 
Security reports to FTA, as required. 
 
Submitted MTD and Easy Lift monthly National Transit Database Ridership 
reports to FTA, as required. 
 
Submitted FY 2014 Section 5307 grant application for operating assistance to 
FTA. 
 
Submitted FY 2013 Section 5339 grant application for capital assistance to 
Caltrans. 
 
Continued to monitor all FTA compliance areas, including the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) complementary paratransit service that is operated by 
Easy Lift Transportation for MTD. (MTD is responsible for this service, and must 
ensure that it complies with all FTA requirements.) 
 

 25



ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

BILL SHELOR 
BOARD DIRECTOR

DAVID TABOR
BOARD DIRECTOR

CHUCK McQUARY 
VICE CHAIR

OLIVIA RODRIGUEZ
SECRETARY

DICK WEINBERG
BOARD DIRECTOR

NANCY ALEXANDER
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MGR./

MARKETING TEAM

BRAD DAVIS
MANAGER OF 
PURCHASING 
& CONTRACT 

ADMINISTRATION

TOM SHELDON
IT MANAGER

LIZ DE LA TORRE
MANAGER OF 
ACCOUNTING

JENNIFER TANNER 
ACCOUNTING ASSISTANT

GEORGE AMOON 
MANAGER OF  

PLANNING

JILL GRISHAM
ASST. MGR. HUMAN 
RESOURCES & RISK

BILL MORRIS
MANAGER OF 
OPERATIONS

STEVE MAAS
MANAGER OF 

GOVERNMENT 
RELATIONS & 
COMPLIANCE

DALE ZIELINSKI
MANAGER OF 

MAINTENANCE

1
FOREMAN

12
MECHANICS

DAVE MORSE
SUPERINTENDENT OF 

OPERATIONS

HATTIE HUSBANDS
OPERATIONS ASSISTANT

3
ROAD SUPERVISORS

2
TERMINAL 

SUPERVISORS

2
TRANSIT CENTER 

SUPERVISORS

1
TRAINING 

SUPERVISOR

UPDATED 5/5/2014

DBE

DAVE DAVIS
CHAIR

SHERRIE FISHER 
GENERAL MANAGER

JERRY ESTRADA
ASSISTANT GENERAL 

MANAGER/
CONTROLLER

146
DRIVERS

JUAN PEREZ
ELECTRONIC 

COMMUNICATIONS/
FAREBOX TECHNICIAN

FRANK REYNOSO
FACILITIES SPECIALIST

MIKE CARDONA
SUPERINTENDENT OF 

MAINTENANCE

DIANA FLORES
BOOKKEEPER

THAIS SAYAT
ASST. ACCOUNTING 

MANAGER

4 
CUSTOMER

 SERVICE REPS

GABRIEL GARCIA
MANAGER OF HUMAN 

RESOURCES & RISK

JOSH MARTINEZ
FARE & REVENUE 

COLLECTION  
TECHNICIAN

SUSAN SCHORR
MAINTENANCE DATA 

ANALYST

JOHN HERRERA
PARTS CLERK

STEVE HAHN
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

OF MAINTENANCE

1
TECHNICAL UTILITY WORKER

3
UTILITY WORKERS

8 
SERVICE WORKERS

RICARDO CABRERA
LEAD UTILITY

ED EASTON 
BOARD DIRECTOR

VACANT
ADMIN. ASSISTANT

CYNTHIA BOCHE
ASST. PLANNING 

MANAGER 
(COMMUNICATIONS)

PAUL TUMBLESON
ASST. PLANNING 

MANAGER 
(SCHEDULING)

ROBERT OLIVERA
BUS STOP

MAINTENANCE

PABLO ZUNIGA
ROUTE PLANNER/

SCHEDULER

NATASHA GARDUNO
EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT/ 

MARKETING TEAM/ADVERTISING

EEO OFFICER



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE: MAY 13, 2014 AGENDA ITEM #:   8 

TYPE: INFORMATION  

PREPARED BY: JERRY ESTRADA ______________________________  
     Signature 

REVIEWED BY: GENERAL MANAGER ______________________________  
   GM Signature 
 
SUBJECT: Finance Update & Financial Statement Analysis for the Nine-

Month Period Ending March 31, 2014 

DISCUSSION: 

Sales Tax Revenue Trend 
 
The chart below includes staff’s Transportation Development Act – Local 
Transportation Fund (TDA-LTF) sales tax revenue estimate for the current fiscal 
year.  The prior year figures have been normalized to allocate sales tax revenue 
to the fiscal year in which is was attributable.   
 

TDA-LTF Sales Tax Revenue

$5,608,291
$5,955,232

$6,520,017 $6,690,231 $6,822,813

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

FY 2010-11 FY 2010-11 FY 2011-12 FY 2012-13 FY 2013-14

$564,785, 
9.5%

$132,582, 
2.0%

$170,214, 
2.6%

$346,941, 
6.2%

 
The chart illustrates that while TDA-LTF sales tax revenue continues to grow, the 
rate has slowed considerably from a few years ago.  The estimated amount of 
$6,822,813 for fiscal year 2013-14 is nearly identical to the previous high that 
was received in fiscal year 2007-08, which was pre-Great Recession. 
 
MTD’s TDA-LTF allocation for fiscal year 2014-15 is $7,269,606, which would 
reflect an increase of 6.5% over staff’s current estimate of $6,822,813.  While it is 

05/08/2014  Page 1 of 3 



feasible that the local economy may pick up and that a 6.5% increase in sales tax 
revenue may occur, staff is unlikely to use the $7.2 million dollar figure in it final 
budget recommendation for next year.  Staff projected a draft budget for next 
fiscal year in March which assumed a figure of $6,958,254.  At that time staff was 
much more pessimistic regarding sales tax revenue.  Recent monthly returns 
have given staff confidence to project a 3% increase for next fiscal year, which 
would result in $7,027,497.  That is an improvement of $69,243 over March’s 
estimate. 
 
Financial Statement Analysis 
 
Performance Indicators 
The Revenue, Expense and Performance Report indicates that the farebox ratio 
decreased by 2.2% from 37% to 36.2% for the nine-month period.  MTD is 
required to maintain a farebox ratio of 30.3%.  
 
Operating cost per revenue hour increased by 2.8% to $112.61.  The result is 
satisfactory considering the growth in operating expense of 4%, which includes 
increased wage and health insurance contributions.   
 
Total passengers decreased by 1.95% or 112,883.  Coupled with the increase in 
operating expense, the cost per passenger is up 6.14% to $2.96.  Consistent with 
this trend, the number of passengers per revenue hour decreased 3.14% from 
39.2% to 38%. 
 
Financials 
The Operating & Capital Budget Report, page 2 of the attached financial 
statements, summarizes the net gain/loss of operating activities.  Through the 
nine-months ending March 31, 2014, operating activities resulted in a net loss of 
$2,495,8911.  The budget reflected an anticipated net loss of $3,560,624.      
 
The Revenue Variance Report, page 4 indicates that total operating revenue of 
$14,359,525 exceeded the budget by $213,112 or 1.5%.  Operating Revenue 
consisting of cash fares, pass sales and contract fares of $6,103,587 slightly 
exceeded the budget by $56,305.  Noteworthy, Special Event Fares of $77,294 
have surpassed what was generated last year by $71,418 and has exceeded the 
budget by $36,044.   
 
Total sales tax revenue of $7,012,384, which consists of SB325 Local 
Transportation Fund (TDA-LTF) and Measure A, was in line with the budgeted 
expectations (net variance $30,481).   
 
Property tax revenue has exceeded budget projections by $71,505 at this point.  
However, it is only 1.3% or $7,258 greater than previous year results.  The 
budget variance appears to be due to a mistake in the allocation of the budget 

                                                 
1 20% of annual operating revenue is generated from federal operating assistance, which is 
typically received in the final quarter of the fiscal year.  As such, MTD relies heavily on its working 
capital throughout most of the fiscal year to fund the cost of operating activities.   

05/08/2014  Page 2 of 3 



05/08/2014  Page 3 of 3 

over the current 12-months rather than the result of higher revenue.  This 
variance is projected to decrease significantly over the final three months of the 
fiscal year. 
 
Operating Expenditures, found on page 5, of $16,855,416 are $851,623 or 4.8% 
below budget for the period.  However, these costs in comparison to last year 
increased by 4%. 
 
Wage and Benefits associated with driver pay was $130,626 below budget, but 
$396,832 more than what was spent in the prior year.  The growth versus prior 
year results reflects collectively bargained wage and benefit changes.  The wage 
increases were retroactive to July 1, 2013 and the employer paid health 
insurance contribution increase was retroactive to October 1, 2013. 
 
As it pertains to liability and workers compensation expense, MTD is self-insured 
up to $250,000 per claim.  Combined, liability and workers compensation 
expense was $373,662 under budget.  However, said costs have exceeded last 
year’s combined total for the first nine months by $47,017.  There was a 
substantial decrease of $272,801 in workers compensation change in prior year’s 
incident reserves.  Reserves are estimated by MTD’s third-party administrator 
using standard industry practices and guidelines.   
 
Mechanic wage and benefits were 1.5% or $12,532 under budget but 9.5% or 
$70,662 greater than prior year results.  The increase versus prior year results 
was due in large part to a couple of mechanic medical leaves of absences that 
occurred in the prior year.   
 
Vehicle bus parts costs were $57,879 under budget, but reflect an 11.5% 
increase over what was spent in the prior year.  MTD is typically under budget at 
this point in the year as it pertains to Vehicle Bus Parts, but the year-end 
inventory count typically results in an adjustment that increases this expense.  
Bus fuel and lubricants were $54,281 under budget which is a 3.8% decrease 
from prior year results.  
 
Promotional and Information budgeted expenses are not being fully realized.  As 
a result, wages, benefits and promotional activities are under budget by 
$117,847.   However, $46,120 of the variance is due to Route Schedule & 
Information expenses that have not yet been incurred but are expected to be in 
the next few months.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE: MAY 13, 2014 AGENDA ITEM #: 9 

TYPE: ACTION 

PREPARED BY: BRAD DAVIS   
  Signature 

REVIEWED BY: GENERAL MANAGER   
  Signature 

SUBJECT: Transit Technical Services Contract Award Recommendation 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Based upon the discussion that follows, staff recommends that the board award a contract to 
Vaquero Systems for transit technical consulting services for a three-year period for a not-to-
exceed amount of $150,000. 

DISCUSSION: 

Return Agenda Item 
At the April 29, 2014, board meeting, the board tabled the contract award recommendation 
agenda item based on the need for additional information. The board directed staff to bring the 
item back for reconsideration at today’s board and to include as part of the board report: 

 The project contract approved by MTD legal counsel 
 The qualifications of the recommended awardee, Vaquero Systems 
 
The above items are included as an attachment to this staff report along with the original 
transit technical services contract award recommendation board report from April 29. 
 
Please note that the Statement of Qualifications Proposal submitted by Vaquero Systems is 
Exhibit C to the Master Agreement. Highlights of the qualifications and experience of Vaquero 
Systems personnel include: 

 Successfully completed over $3,300,000 in transportation-related sponsored projects at 
California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo 

 Access to consultants with expertise in alternative fuel and battery-powered vehicles, and 
solar energy production through the Cal Poly Electrical Engineering Department 

 Strong experience in on-board transit systems, schedule adherence determination, 
systems integration, as well as software, system, and electrical engineering 

 Development of Mobile On-Time Performance System (MOPS) for MTD 

 Project management for the advanced public transportation systems for Cal Poly Pomona's 
Bronco Express shuttle program 



MTD Board of Directors Report May 13, 2014 
 

Agenda Item 9  Page 2 of 2 

 Project management of ongoing California Department of Transportation project Efficient 
Deployment of Advanced Public Transportation Systems (EDAPTS): A Demonstration and 
model for Local Capacity Building in San Luis Obispo County 

 Principle Investigation for California Air Resources Board project Development of Modeling 
Tools for Microscale Emissions Modeling 

 Jeff Gerfen: 
o M.S. Electronic and Electrical Engineering & B.S. Computer Engineering 
o Lecturer at Cal Poly SLO including Intelligent Transportation Systems course 

 Neil Hockaday: 
o Research Assistant & Systems Analyst at Cal Poly SLO, College of Engineering 

 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Recommend Contract Award for Transit Technical Consulting Services board report 
dated April 29, 2014. 

2. Master Agreement with Vaquero Systems for Transit Technical Services, which includes 
the vendor qualifications as Exhibit C to the agreement. 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 
 
 

MEETING DATE: APRIL 24, 2014 AGENDA ITEM #: 9 

TYPE: ACTION  

PREPARED BY: JERRY ESTRADA _____________________________  
     Signature 

REVIEWED BY: GENERAL MANAGER _____________________________  
   GM Signature 
 
SUBJECT: RECOMMEND CONTRACT AWARD FOR TRANSIT TECHNICAL 

CONSULTING SERVICES 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Based upon the discussion that follows, staff recommends that a contract be awarded to 
Vaquero Systems for on-call transit technical consulting services for a three-year period 
for an estimated total amount of $150,000. 
 
DISCUSSION 

Request for Qualifications—The Request for Qualifications was publicly noticed on 
December 4, 2013, in the Santa Barbara News-Press and in the December 16th issue 
of Passenger Transport. It required submitters to provide detailed résumés for 
individuals proposed to work on MTD projects during the contract term. Four probable 
projects were included in the scope of work and were the basis for submitters to identify 
the personnel for whom they provided qualifications.  The projects included were as 
follows: 
 

A. Automated Vehicle Location System—MTD is currently conducting a 
solicitation for the acquisition and installation of an Automated Vehicle 
Location (AVL) system.  The Transit Technical Service contractor will likely be 
assigned the role of project implementation manager and be MTD’s liaison 
with the firm hired to provide the AVL system.  The AVL system will result in a 
turnkey system that shall provide the following five primary ITS 
enhancements: 

 
 Automatic Vehicle Location  

 Time of Arrival Information  

 Route & Schedule Adherence  

 Onboard Video Surveillance  

 Yard Wireless Network 

 
B. Smartcard Fare Collection—MTD is interested in working with local entities 

such as the University of California Santa Barbara (UCSB) and Santa 
Barbara Community College (SBCC) to implement bus pass technology that 

04/25/2014  Page 1 of 3 



will be inter-operable with MTD’s GFI Odyssey Fare Revenue Collection 
system and student identification products administered by UCSB and SBCC. 

 

C. Photovoltaic System—MTD desires to implement a photovoltaic system at 
Olive Terminal to generate electricity for either onsite usage or sale to a 
public utility.  Such a system would make use of its large flat roof areas for 
solar panels. The most likely roof areas include the bus canopy adjacent to 
the shop and the bus charging canopy structure in the southeast corner of the 
facility. 

 
D. Battery-Electric Vehicle Program— MTD’s Battery-Electric Vehicle program 

was introduced in the late 1980’s with the introduction of two 22’ lead-acid 
battery-electric shuttles.  The program has expanded to a current size of 19 
shuttles powered by a mix of battery types including lead-acid, NiCad and 
Lithium ION.  The Transit Technical Consultant will be required to provide the 
following services: 

 
 

 Research & Assessment (Transit & Battery Industry) 

 Procurement (Buses, Batteries, Chargers) 

 Reporting (Board & Technical reports) 

 Program Evaluation 

 Grant Applications 

 
A non-mandatory pre-submittal conference was attended by one firm and three 
addenda were issued to answer questions and clarify and modify the RFQ. 
Qualifications and other required forms were submitted by the January 14, 2014, due 
date by two firms. 
 
Qualifications Evaluation—The first step in the evaluation process was to determine if 
the submittals were responsive to the requirements of the RFQ. Both proposals were so 
determined. Next, the proposals were evaluated in order to determine the “most highly 
qualified” firm without consideration of price. A committee consisting of two MTD staff 
members—Brad Davis and I—reviewed the qualifications. Separately, each committee 
member evaluated the submittals with regard to the evaluation criteria identified in the 
RFQ and listed as follows in relative order of importance: 

 

 Demonstrated successful experience performing projects similar to those in the 
Scope of Work. 

 Experience and technical expertise of personnel proposed to work on anticipated 
MTD projects. 

 Familiarity with federal and State of California funded projects and associated 
requirements. 

 

04/25/2014  Page 2 of 3 



04/25/2014  Page 3 of 3 

The evaluation committee met to discuss the evaluations in order to come up with a 
consensus score for each firm. This resulted in the following numeric score based on a 
maximum of 15 points. 
 

Submitter Name Score
Vaquero Systems 12.0 
Transportation Consultants Unlimited 8.5 

 
Responsibility Determination—Vaquero Systems was found to be responsible in that it 
was determined to have the financial and technical capacity to undertake the project. 
Work and credit references were checked as part of this process. Additionally, it was 
verified that Vaquero System was not listed in the federal excluded parties list nor were 
there any complaints with the Better Business Bureau.  
 
Price Evaluation—As the most highly qualified firm, Vaquero Systems, located in San 
Luis Obispo, was notified to submit its price proposal to be composed of its hourly 
consulting rates and pricing for additional items or services that may be required during 
contract performance (e.g., third-party consulting services, duplication, printing, 
mileage, etc.). Vaquero responded with the following price schedule: 

 An hourly rate of $125 for Jeff Gerfen and Neil Hockaday, the two partners 
making up the firm; 

 Outsides services at cost with no markup; 

 No mileage or labor charge for travel to and from MTD, and; 

 No change in rates over the three-year contract period. 

 
The services to be provided by Vaquero Systems will vary from project management to 
computer and electrical engineering design, analysis, and implementation. Based upon 
experience with other consultants with similar professional credentials and experience, 
staff believes the labor rate to be fair and reasonable.  Some examples of recent 
consulting and professional fees paid by MTD include: 

 

Electrical Engineering (present) $140 

AVL Project Management (2013) $187 

Electrical Engineering (2012) $150 

Proposal Evaluation Consultant (2011) $160 

 
Regarding Vaquero’s other fees, it is evident from the lack of charges or markups that 
these are fair and reasonable. In conclusion, the evaluation committee finds that 
Vaquero Systems has the requisite qualifications to provide MTD with the needed 
transit technical consulting services and that its billable rates are fair and reasonable. 

 



Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District 

Transit Technical Services 

MASTER AGREEMENT with Vaquero Systems 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District, an incorporated 
transit district under Sections 95000, et seq. of the California Public Utilities Code ("MTD"), and Vaquero 
Systems, a California general partnership ("Contractor"), at Santa Barbara, California, as of the later date set forth 
below the signatures executing this Agreement. 

WHEREAS: 

A. MTD desires to engage Contractor for public transit technical services  for consultation, project management 
and implementation and research relating to various MTD projects & programs including but not limited to 
automated vehicle location, smartcard fare collection, photovoltaic systems, and MTD’s battery-electric vehicle 
program. (the "Project"); 

B. Contractor represents that it has the knowledge and experience to carry out the Project, and desires to carry 
out the Project pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof, and; 

C. Based upon the representations made by Contractor, MTD desires to retain the services of Contractor to carry 
out the aforesaid Project, upon the within terms and conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the parties do hereby agree as follows: 

1. Effect of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby made express provisions of this Agreement. 

2. FTA Provisions. The Project is funded in part by the Federal Transit Administration of the U.S. Department 
of Transportation and, as such, this Agreement is subject to the terms and conditions contained in Federal Transit 
Administration: Contract Provisions for Federal Fiscal Year 13/14 which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

3. Public Works Provisions. Not applicable to this agreement. 

4. Scope of Work. MTD has heretofore issued on December 3, 2013 the scope of work contained in Request for 
Qualifications for Transit Technical Services, a true copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

5. Qualifications & Price Proposals. Contractor has heretofore submitted on January 13, 2014, a qualifications 
proposal and on March 31, 2014, a Price Proposal Form stating the labor rates and additional expenses for 
carrying out the project, true copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit C and Exhibit D, respectively, and 
incorporated herein by these references. 

6. Order of Control. Contractor shall carry out the Project described in Exhibit B to this Agreement for the price 
quoted in Exhibit D. All work and services shall be performed according to and controlled by the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement and the exhibits attached hereto. In the event of any conflict between the contract 
documents, the following order of control shall prevail: MTD Master Agreement, Exhibit A, Exhibit B, Exhibit D, 
and Exhibit C. 

7. Contract Price & Period. Contractor shall carry out the Project for the labor rates and additional expenses 
stated in Exhibit D for a three-year period commencing with the effective date of this Master Agreement with a 
not-to-exceed amount of one hundred fifty thousand dollars ($150,000.00). 

8. Payment. Contractor shall submit invoices to MTD for each calendar month for which services are rendered 
under this Agreement. Such invoices shall be provided within ten (10) days following the end of the calendar 
month. Payment from MTD shall be made to Contractor no later than thirty (30) days of receipt of a valid invoice, 
which shall be sent to: Santa Barbara MTD, Attn: Brad Davis, 550 Olive Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101. 

Transit Technical Services Page 1 of 7 Master Version 20140507 



MTD Master Agreement  Vaquero Systems 

9. Taxes. MTD is exempt from the payment of Federal Excise and Transportation taxes. MTD is subject to 
applicable California Sales Tax for Santa Barbara County 

10. Project Schedule. To be determined for each specific project. 

11. Delivery & Freight. Unless specified otherwise in the scope of work, any item provided under this Agreement 
shall be delivered FOB Santa Barbara to 550 Olive Street, Santa Barbara, CA  93101. 

12. Title & Risk of Loss. Not applicable to this Agreement. 

13. Damages. All losses or damages arising from any unforeseen circumstances, either natural or artificial, which 
may be encountered by the Contractor during the performance of the Project under this Agreement shall be 
sustained solely by the Contractor. This provision shall also apply to losses or damages resulting from any act or 
omission not authorized by this Agreement on the part of the Contractor or any agent or person employed by the 
Contractor. 

14. Defective, Damaged or Noncompliant Work. Not applicable to this Agreement. 

15. Acceptance. Deliverables to be furnished by the Contractor to MTD pursuant to this Agreement may be 
subject to acceptance by MTD. If so, MTD shall inspect such deliverables to determine acceptability no later than 
ten (10) calendar days after said deliverables are received. Acceptance shall occur when it is determined by MTD 
that deliverables provided are in compliance with the terms of this agreement. 

16. Warranty. Not applicable to this Agreement. 

17. Changes. Any changes or modifications to this Agreement must be in writing, and agreed to by both parties. 

18. Insurance. 

a. Contractor’s Insurance Representations to MTD. 

i. It is expressly understood and agreed that the insurance coverages required herein: 

A. represent MTD’s minimum requirements and are not to be construed to void or limit Contractor’s 
indemnity obligations as contained in this Agreement nor represent in any manner a determination of 
the insurance coverages Contractor should or should not maintain for its own protection; and 

B. are being, or have been, obtained by Contractor in support of Contractor’s liability and indemnity 
obligations under this Agreement. Irrespective of the requirements as to insurance to be carried as 
provided for herein, the insolvency, bankruptcy, or failure of any insurance company carrying 
insurance of Contractor, or the failure of any insurance company to pay claims accruing, shall not be 
held to affect, negate, or waive any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

ii. Failure to obtain and maintain the required insurance shall constitute a material breach of, and default 
under this Contract. If Contractor shall fail to remedy such breach within five (5) business days after 
written notice by MTD, Contractor will be liable for any and all costs, liabilities, damages and penalties 
resulting to MTD from such breach, unless a written waiver of the specific insurance requirement(s) is 
provided to Contractor by MTD. In the event of any failure to Contractor to comply with the provisions of 
this portion of the Agreement, MTD may, without in any way compromising or waiving any right or 
remedy at law or in equity, on notice to Contractor, purchase such insurance, at Contractor’s expense, 
provided that MTD shall have no obligation to do so and if MTD shall do so, Contractor shall not be 
relieved of or excused from the obligation to obtain and maintain such insurance amounts and coverages. 

b. Conditions Affecting All Insurance Required Herein. 

i. Cost of Insurance. All insurance coverage shall be provided at Contractor’s sole expense.  

ii. Maintenance of Insurance. All insurance coverage shall be maintained in effect with limits not less 
than those set forth below at all times during the term of this Agreement. 

iii. Status and Rating of Insurance Company. All insurance coverage shall be written through insurance 
companies admitted to do business in California and with a Best’s Financial Strength Rating of A- or 
better, as shown in the on-line version of Best’s Rating & Criteria Center.  

Transit Technical Services Page 2 of 7 Master Version 20140507 



MTD Master Agreement  Vaquero Systems 

iv. Restrictive, Limiting, or Exclusionary Endorsements. All insurance coverage shall be provided to 
Contractor Parties in compliance with the requirements herein and shall contain no endorsements that 
restrict, limit, or exclude coverage in any manner without the prior express written approval of MTD. 

v. Limits of Liability. The limits of liability may be provided by a single policy of insurance or by a 
combination of primary and umbrella policies, but in no event shall the total limits of liability available 
for any one occurrence or accident be less than the amount required herein. 

vi. Notice of Cancellation, Nonrenewal, or Material Reduction in Coverage. In the event of cancellation, 
nonrenewal, or material reduction in coverage affecting the certificate holder, thirty (30) days prior 
written notice shall be given to the certificate holder by certified mail, return receipt requested, except in 
the event of cancellation for nonpayment, in which event fifteen (15) days prior written notice shall be 
given. If insurer will not include in its coverage such written notifications, it shall be incumbent upon 
Contractor to comply with such written notification requirements. 

vii. Additional Insured Status. Additional insured status shall be provided in favor of MTD and its 
officers, employees and agents, including consultants, on all liability insurance required herein except 
workers’ compensation/employer’s liability and the certificate of insurance shall reflect same. Such 
additional insured coverage shall be primary to and shall seek no contribution from all insurance available 
to MTD, with MTD’s insurance being excess, secondary, and noncontributing. 

viii. Waiver of Subrogation. All insurance coverage carried by Contractor required herein shall provide a 
waiver of subrogation in favor of MTD for all loss covered by such insurance, and Contractor waives all 
rights of action against MTD for such loss.  

ix. Primary Liability. All insurance coverage required herein shall be primary to and shall seek no 
contribution from all insurance available to MTD, with MTD’s insurance being excess, secondary, and 
noncontributing. Where necessary, coverage shall be endorsed to provide such primary liability, and the 
certificate of insurance shall reflect same. 

x. Deductible/Retention. All insurance required for this project shall have a maximum deductible or 
self-insured retention of $10,000 per policy.  

xi. Claims Against Aggregate. MTD must be notified in writing by Contractor at MTD’s address set 
forth herein immediately upon knowledge of possible claims against Contractor that might cause a 
reduction below seventy-five (75%) of any aggregate limit of any primary policy. 

c. Commercial General Liability Insurance. 

i. Coverage. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of all locations and operations of 
Contractor, including but not limited to liability assumed under this Agreement (including the tort liability 
of another assumed in a business contract). Defense shall be provided as an additional benefit and not 
included within the limit of liability. 

ii. Form. Commercial General Liability Occurrence form, at least as broad as an unmodified ISO CG 00 
01 10 93 or its equivalent. 

iii. Amount of Insurance. Coverage shall be provided with limits of not less than: 

A. Each Occurrence Limit $1,000,000 
B. General Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
C. Product-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit  $2,000,000 
D. Personal and Advertising Injury Limits $1,000,000 
E. Fire Damage (any one fire) $50,000 
F. Medical Expense (any one person) $5,000 

iv. Required Endorsements. 

A. Additional Insured status as required in 18(b)(vii), above. 
B. Notice of Cancellation, Nonrenewal, or Material Reduction in Coverage, as required in 18(b)(vi), 
above. 
C. Personal Injury Liability: The personal injury contractual liability exclusion shall be deleted. 

Transit Technical Services Page 3 of 7 Master Version 20140507 



MTD Master Agreement  Vaquero Systems 

D. Primary Liability, as required in 18(b)(ix), above. 
E. Waiver of Subrogation, as required in 18(b)(viii), above. 
F. Continuing Commercial General Liability Insurance: Contractor shall maintain such insurance in 
identical coverage, form, and amount, including required endorsements, for at least three (3) years 
following the date of acceptance by MTD of the last bus built pursuant to this Agreement. 

d. Auto Liability Insurance.  All partners of the Contractor certify that they have their own individual 
automobile policies in compliance with the coverages set forth in paragraphs iii and iv below. 

i. Coverage. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of any auto (including owned, hired, and 
non-owned). 

ii. Form. Business Auto Form (at least as broad as an unmodified ISO CA 0001 or its equivalent). 

iii. Amount of Insurance. Coverage shall be provided with a limit of not less than $1,000,000, combined 
single limit. 

iv. Required Endorsements. 

A. Additional Insured status as required in 18(b)(vii), above. 
B. Notice of Cancellation, Nonrenewal, or Material Reduction in Coverage, as required in 18(b)(vi), 
above. 
C. Waiver of Subrogation, as required in 18(b)(viii), above. 

e. Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability Insurance. Contractor certifies that it does not presently 
have any employees and agrees to provide the Workers’ Compensation/Employee Liability Insurance meeting 
these requirements in the event that Contractor hires or uses any employees or independent contractors in the 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 

i. Coverage. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of Contractor’s employment of workers and 
anyone for whom Contractor may be liable for workers’ compensation claims. Workers’ compensation 
insurance is required, and no “alternative” forms of insurance shall be permitted.  

ii. Amount of Insurance. Coverage shall be provided with a limit of not less than: 

A. Workers’ Compensation: Statutory limits 
B. Employer’s Liability:  $1,000,000 each accident and disease. 

iii. Required Endorsements. 

A. Notice of Cancellation, Nonrenewal, or Material Reduction in Coverage, as required in 18(b)(vi), 
above. 
B. Waiver of Subrogation, as required in 18(b)(viii), above. 

f. Professional Errors & Omissions Liability Insurance. 

i. Coverage. Such insurance shall cover claims alleged to arise out of the negligent performance of 
Contractor’s professional services. 

ii. Amount of Insurance. Coverage shall be provided with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 annual 
aggregate. 

19. Bonding. Not applicable to this Agreement. 

20. Termination. For applicable terms, refer to Paragraph 21 (Termination) in Federal Transit Administration: 
Contract Provisions for Federal Fiscal Year 13/14 which is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

21. Liquidated Damages. Not applicable to this Agreement. 

22. Infringement of Patents. The Contractor agrees that it will, at its own expense, defend all suits and 
proceedings instituted against MTD and pay any award of damages assessed against MTD in such suits or 
proceedings, insofar as the same are based upon any claim that the items, services, work, systems, or any part 
thereof, or any tool, or process used in or for the Project, constitutes an infringement of any legal United States 
copyright or patent. MTD agrees that it will give the Contractor prompt notice in writing of the institution of the 
suit or proceeding and permits the Contractor through its counsel to defend the same and gives the Contractor all 

Transit Technical Services Page 4 of 7 Master Version 20140507 



MTD Master Agreement  Vaquero Systems 

information, assistance and authority necessary for the Contractor to do so. In case said items, services, work,  
systems, or any part thereof, or any tool, or process used in or for the Project, is in such suit held to constitute 
infringement and use of same is enjoined, the Contractor shall, at its own expense and at its option, either procure 
for the MTD the right to continue using said items, services, work,  systems, or any part thereof, or any tool, or 
process used in or for the Project, or replace same with non-infringing equipment, or modify it so it becomes non-
infringing. 

23. Rights in Data. Definitions. The term "subject data" used in this clause means recorded information, whether 
or not copyrighted, that is delivered or specified to be delivered under this Agreement. Subject data includes 
graphic or pictorial delineation in media such as drawings or photographs; text in specifications or related 
performance or design-type documents; machine forms such as punched cards, magnetic tape, or computer 
memory printouts; and information retained in computer memory. Examples include, but are not limited to: 
computer software (including, but not limited to, source codes), engineering drawings and associated lists, 
specifications, standards, process sheets, manuals, technical reports, catalog item identifications, and related 
information. The term "subject data" does not include financial reports, cost analyses, and similar information 
incidental to contract administration. MTD Rights. MTD reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable 
license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for MTD purposes, any subject data 
or copyright. As used in the previous sentence, "for MTD purposes," means use only for the direct purposes of 
MTD. Without the copyright owner's consent, MTD may not extend its license to any other party. Public 
Information. When MTD awards a contract for experimental, developmental, or research work, it is MTD’s 
general intention to increase transportation knowledge available to the public, rather than to restrict the benefits 
resulting from the work to participants in that work. Therefore, unless MTD determines otherwise, MTD and the 
Contractor performing experimental, developmental, or research work required by the contract agrees to permit 
MTD to make available to the public, either MTD's license in the copyright to any subject data developed in the 
course of that contract, or a copy of the subject data first produced under the contract for which a copyright has 
not been obtained. If the experimental, developmental, or research work, which is the subject of the underlying 
contract, is not completed for any reason whatsoever, all data developed under that contract shall become subject 
data and shall be delivered as MTD may direct. 

24. Indemnification. The Contractor shall, to the extent permitted by law protect, indemnify, defend, and hold 
MTD and its officers, employees and agents, including consultants, harmless from and against any and all 
liabilities, damages, claims, demands, liens, encumbrances, judgments, awards, losses, costs, expenses, and suits 
or actions or proceedings, including reasonable expenses, costs and attorneys' fees incurred by MTD and its 
officers, employees and agents, including consultants, in the defense, settlement or satisfaction thereof, for any 
injury, death, loss or damage to persons or property of any kind whatsoever, arising out of, or resulting from, the 
acts, errors or omissions of the Contractor, including acts, errors or omissions of its officers, employees, servants, 
agents, subcontractors and suppliers; and upon receipt of notice and if given authority, shall settle at its own 
expense or undertake at its own expense the defense of any such suit, action or proceeding, including appeals, 
against the MTD and its officers, employees and agents, including consultants, relating to such injury, death, loss 
or damage. Each party shall promptly notify the other in writing of the notice or assertion of any claim, demand, 
lien, encumbrance, judgment, award, suit, action or other proceeding hereunder. The Contractor shall have sole 
charge and direction of the defense of such suit, action or proceeding. The MTD shall not make any admission 
which might be materially prejudicial to the Contractor unless the Contractor has failed to take over the conduct 
of any negotiations or defense within a reasonable time after receipt of the notice and authority above provided. 
The MTD shall at the request of the Contractor furnish to the Contractor all reasonable assistance that may be 
necessary for the purpose of defending such suit, action or proceeding, and shall be repaid all reasonable costs 
incurred in doing so. The MTD shall have the right to be represented therein by advisory counsel of its own 
selection at its own expense. The obligations of the Contractor under this clause shall not extend to circumstances 
where the injury, or death, or damages is caused solely by the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the MTD, its 
officers, employees, agents or consultants, including negligence in the preparation of the Contract documents, or 
the giving of directions or instructions with respect to the requirements of the Contract by written order.  

25. Notice. Notices in connection with this Agreement shall be made in writing and may be delivered either 
personally, by governmental postal service (regular, certified or registered), by private delivery service, or by 

Transit Technical Services Page 5 of 7 Master Version 20140507 



MTD Master Agreement  Vaquero Systems 

electronic facsimile. Receipt shall be deemed to have occurred when actually made to the party or its designated 
agent. Such notices shall be properly addressed to the intended party as follows: 

 MTD: CONTRACTOR: 
 Sherrie Fisher, General Manager Jeffrey Gerfen, Partner 
 Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District Vaquero Systems 
 550 Olive Street 4825 Iron Springs Road 
 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 [insert contractor city, state & zip] 
 E-Mail:  sfisher@sbmtd.gov E-Mail: jeff@vaquerosystems.com 

26. Attorneys' Fees and Costs. In the event of a controversy (including, but not limited to arbitration or an 
criminal or civil filing in a Federal Court or a court of any of the United States) between the parties with respect 
to the enforcement or interpretation of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such controversy shall be entitled to 
receive, in addition to such other award as the court may deem appropriate, full reimbursement for its court costs 
and reasonable attorneys' fees incurred therein. 

27. Negation of Partnership. This Agreement creates a relationship between two independent contractors and does 
not, nor may it be interpreted to, create the relationship of joint venturers, partners, employee/employer, or any 
other business relationship. 

28. No Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable by either party, and any attempt by either party to assign its 
obligations hereunder shall be void ab initio at the election of the other party, which election may be made by 
written notice within ten (10) days of the non-assigning party's receipt of actual knowledge of such attempted 
assignment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, at the election of the other party, the obligations and 
burdens of a party shall bind and apply to any permitted successor in interest or assignee of the business and/or 
operations of a party. 

29. Partial Invalidity. In the event that any portion of this Agreement or any provision hereof shall be deemed as 
invalid as contrary to applicable law, the balance of this Agreement shall be enforced according to its term, and 
that portion found unenforceable shall be interpreted and enforced to the extent that it may be within said 
applicable laws. 

30. Disputes. This Agreement shall be construed and all disputes arising therefrom shall be settled in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California. Venue for any dispute arising under this Agreement shall be in Santa 
Barbara, California. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be resolved by 
binding arbitration before a single arbitrator in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the 
American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) then pertaining (available at www.adr.org), except where those rules 
conflict with this provision, in which case this provision controls. Any court with jurisdiction shall enforce this 
clause and enter judgment on any award. The arbitrator shall be selected within twenty business days from 
commencement of the arbitration from the AAA’s National Roster of Arbitrators pursuant to agreement or 
through selection procedures administered by the AAA. Within 45 days of initiation of arbitration, the Parties 
shall reach agreement upon and thereafter follow procedures, including reasonable limits on discovery, assuring 
that the arbitration will be concluded and the award rendered within no more than eight months from selection of 
the arbitrator or, failing agreement, procedures meeting such time limits will be designed by the AAA and 
adhered to by the Parties. The arbitration shall be held in Santa Barbara, California and the arbitrator shall apply 
the substantive law of California, except that the interpretation and enforcement of this arbitration provision shall 
be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act. Prior to commencement of arbitration, emergency relief is available 
from any court to avoid irreparable harm. THE ARBITRATOR SHALL NOT AWARD EITHER PARTY 
PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, MULTIPLIED OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. Prior to commencement of 
arbitration, however, the Parties must attempt to mediate their dispute using a professional mediator from AAA, 
the CPR Institute for Dispute Resolution, or like organization selected by agreement or, absent agreement, 
through selection procedures administered by the AAA. Within a period of 45 days after the request for 
mediation, the Parties agree to convene with the mediator, with business representatives present, for at least one 
session to attempt to resolve the matter. In no event will mediation delay commencement of the arbitration for 
more than 45 days absent agreement of the Parties or interfere with the availability of emergency relief. 

Transit Technical Services Page 6 of 7 Master Version 20140507 



MTD Master Agreement  Vaquero Systems 

Transit Technical Services Page 7 of 7 Master Version 20140507 

31. Prohibited Interest. The parties hereto covenant and agree that to their knowledge no board member, officer, 
or employee of MTD, during his/her tenure or for one year thereafter, has any interest, whether contractual, non 
contractual, financial or otherwise, in this transaction, or in the business of a contracting party other than MTD. If 
any such interest comes to the knowledge of either party at any time, a full and complete disclosure of all such 
information will be made in writing to the other parties, even if such interest would not be considered a conflict of 
interest under Article 4, Chapter 1, Divisions 4 and 4.5, Title I of the Government Code of the State of California. 

32. Compliance with Laws and Regulations. Contractor shall warrant that in the performance of work under 
contract to MTD that they shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and ordinances, and all 
lawful orders, rules, and regulations thereunder. 

33. Audit and Inspection of Records. The Contractor shall agree that all materials supplied and services 
performed under the Project, facilities used in connection therewith, and records and documentation thereunto 
appertaining shall be subject to inspection, test, or audit by duly authorized representatives of MTD and the State 
of California. The Contractor agrees to maintain all required records relating to the Project for at least three years 
after MTD makes final payment and all other pending matters are closed. 

34. Equal Employment Opportunity. For applicable terms, refer to Paragraph 24 (Civil Rights Requirements) in 
Federal Transit Administration: Contract Provisions for Federal Fiscal Year 13/14 which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit A. 

35. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and its attached exhibits constitute the entire agreement between the 
parties and shall be deemed to supersede and cancel any and all previous representations, understandings, or 
agreements between MTD and Contractor as to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may only be amended 
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties. 

36. No Waiver. The failure of either party at any time to require performance by the other party of any provision 
of this Agreement shall in no way affect that party's right to enforce such provisions, nor shall the waiver by either 
party of any breach of any provision of this Agreement be taken or held to be a waiver of any further breach of the 
same provision. 

37. Counterparts: Facsimile/E-mail. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. The parties 
agree that a facsimile or scanned and e-mailed signature may substitute for and have the same legal effect as the 
original signature. 

38. Qualifications. Contractor or Contractor’s representative (Contractor) certifies that Contractor is qualified to 
do business and in good standing is in the State of California, and that Contractor has authority to enter into and 
perform its obligations under this Agreement, which constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Contractor. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Agreement to be executed. 
 
 SANTA BARBARA MTD VAQUERO SYSTEMS 
 
 
 
 _________________________________ __________________________________ 
 Sherrie Fisher, General Manager Jeffrey Gerfen, Partner 
 
 
 _________________________________ __________________________________ 
 Date Date 
 



FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

CONTRACT PROVISIONS FOR FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 13/14 
 

Transit Technical Services 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

1. Fly America Requirements (not applicable) ..........................................................1 

2. Buy America Requirements (not applicable) .........................................................1 

3. Charter Bus & School Bus Requirements (not applicable)....................................1 

4. Cargo Preference Requirements (not applicable) .................................................1 

5. Seismic Safety Requirements...............................................................................1 

6. Energy Conservation Requirements .....................................................................1 

7. Clean Water Requirements...................................................................................1 

8. Bus Testing (not applicable) .................................................................................1 

9. Pre-Award & Post-Delivery Audit Requirements (not applicable)..........................1 

10. Lobbying ...............................................................................................................1 

11. Access to Records & Reports ...............................................................................2 

12. Federal Changes ..................................................................................................2 

13. Bonding Requirements (not applicable) ................................................................2 

14. Clean Air ...............................................................................................................2 

15. Recycled Products (not applicable).......................................................................3 

16. Davis-Bacon & Copeland Anti-Kickback Acts (not applicable) ..............................3 

17. Contract Work Hours & Safety Standards Act (not applicable) .............................3 

18. [Reserved] ............................................................................................................3 

19. No Government Obligations to Third Parties ........................................................3 

20. Program Fraud & False or Fraudulent Statements & Related Acts.......................3 

21. Termination...........................................................................................................3 

22. Government-Wide Debarment & Suspension .......................................................4 

23. Privacy Act (not applicable) ..................................................................................4 

24. Civil Rights Requirements.....................................................................................4 

25. Breaches & Dispute Resolution ............................................................................5 

26. Patent & Rights in Data.........................................................................................5 

27. Transit Employee Protective Agreements (not applicable) ...................................7 

28. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) ..........................................................7 

29. [Reserved] ............................................................................................................7 

30. Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms ...............................7 

31. Drug & Alcohol Testing (not applicable)................................................................7 

32. Intelligent Transportation System (ITS).................................................................7 

 i  



FTA Contract Provisions (FFY 13/14) Santa Barbara MTD 

Transit Technical Services ii Vaquero Systems 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 



FTA Contract Provisions (FFY 13/14) Santa Barbara MTD 

1. FLY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS (not applicable) 

2. BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS (not applicable) 

3. CHARTER BUS & SCHOOL BUS REQUIREMENTS (not applicable) 

4. CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS (not applicable) 

5. SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 

The Contractor agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the standards for Seismic Safety required in Department of Transportation 
Seismic Safety Regulations 49 CFR Part 41 and will certify to compliance to the extent required by the 
regulation. The Contractor also agrees to ensure that all work performed under this contract including work 
performed by a subcontractor is in compliance with the standards required by the Seismic Safety 
Regulations and the certification of compliance issued on the project. 

6. ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS 

The Contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which 
are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and 
Conservation Act. The Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this section in all subcontracts. 

7. CLEAN WATER REQUIREMENTS 

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. The Contractor agrees to report 
each violation to the Purchaser and understands and agrees that the Purchaser will, in turn, report each 
violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office. The Contractor 
also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000. 

8. BUS TESTING (not applicable) 

9. PRE-AWARD & POST-DELIVERY AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (not applicable) 

10. LOBBYING 

The Contractor certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 
with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, 
the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

(b) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
making lobbying contacts to an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, 
grant, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form--LLL, 
"Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions [as amended by "Government 
wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying," 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/96). Note: Language in 
paragraph (b) herein has been modified in accordance with Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 
1995 (P.L. 104-65, to be codified at 2 U.S.C. 1601, et seq.)] 

Transit Technical Services 1 Vaquero Systems 



FTA Contract Provisions (FFY 13/14) Santa Barbara MTD 

(c) The Contractor shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents 
for all subawards exceeding $100,000 at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under 
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.  

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. [Note: Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 1352(c)(1)-(2)(A), any 
person who makes a prohibited expenditure or fails to file or amend a required certification or disclosure 
form shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such 
expenditure or failure.] Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its 
certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 
U.S.C. A 3801, et seq., apply to this certification and disclosure. 

[Note: The Contractor shall have previously submitted to MTD a separately signed Lobbying Certification 
containing the above language for itself and any subcontracts exceeding $100,000 as a condition of 
contract award.] 

11. ACCESS TO RECORDS & REPORTS 

(a) The Contractor agrees to provide MTD, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United 
States or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of 
the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, 
excerpts and transcriptions. Contractor also agrees, pursuant to 49 CFR 633.17 to provide the FTA 
Administrator or his authorized representatives including any PMO Contractor access to Contractor's 
records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is 
receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311. 

(b) If contract is for a capital project or improvement (defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1) through other than 
competitive bidding, the Contractor shall make available records related to the contract to MTD, the 
Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General or any authorized officer or employee of any of 
them for the purposes of conducting an audit and inspection. 

(c) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or 
to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 

(d) The Contractor agrees to maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this contract 
for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this contract, except in 
the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this contract, in which case 
Contractor agrees to maintain same until MTD, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of 
their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions 
related thereto. Reference 49 CFR 18.39(i)(11). 

12. FEDERAL CHANGES 

The Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and 
directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Master Agreement between 
MTD and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. 
Contractor's failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract. 

13. BONDING REQUIREMENTS (not applicable) 

14. CLEAN AIR 

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the 
Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq. The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the 
Purchaser and understands and agrees that the Purchaser will, in turn, report each violation as required to 
assure notification to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office. The Contractor also agrees to include 

Transit Technical Services 2 Vaquero Systems 



FTA Contract Provisions (FFY 13/14) Santa Barbara MTD 

these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal 
assistance provided by FTA. 

15. RECYCLED PRODUCTS (not applicable) 

16. DAVIS-BACON & COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS (not applicable) 

17. CONTRACT WORK HOURS & SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (not applicable) 

18.  [RESERVED] 

19. NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS TO THIRD PARTIES 

(a) MTD and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal 
Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, absent the express written 
consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this contract and shall not be 
subject to any obligations or liabilities to MTD, Contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that 
contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from the underlying contract. 

(b) The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with 
Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to 
identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions. 

20. PROGRAM FRAUD & FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS & RELATED ACTS 

a) The Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as 
amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 CFR 
Part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, the 
Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it may 
make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract or the FTA assisted project for which this 
contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the Contractor 
further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, 
statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the penalties 
of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent the Federal Government 
deems appropriate. 

(b) The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or 
fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under a contract 
connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by 
FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, the Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of 
18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) on the Contractor, to the extent the Federal Government 
deems appropriate. 

(c) The Contractor agrees to include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or in part 
with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clauses shall not be modified, except 
to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions. 

21. TERMINATION 

 (a) Termination for Convenience: MTD or Contractor, by written thirty-days notice, may terminate this 
contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the party’s interest. If this contract is terminated, MTD shall be 
liable only for payment under the payment provisions of this contract for services rendered before the 
effective date of termination. 

(b) Termination for Default 

(1) If the Contractor fails to perform the services, within the time specified in this contract or any 
extension or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, MTD may 

Transit Technical Services 3 Vaquero Systems 



FTA Contract Provisions (FFY 13/14) Santa Barbara MTD 

terminate this contract for default. MTD shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of 
Termination specifying the nature of default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for 
services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in this contract. 

(2) If this contract is terminated while the Contractor has possession of MTD goods, the Contractor 
shall, upon direction of MTD, protect and preserve the goods until surrendered to MTD or its agent. The 
Contractor and MTD shall agree on payment for the preservation and protection of goods. Failure to 
agree on an amount will be resolved under the Dispute clause. 

(3) If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was 
not in default, the rights and obligations of parties shall be the same as if the termination had been 
issued for the convenience of MTD. 

22. GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT & SUSPENSION 

This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29. As such, the Contractor is required 
to verify that none of the Contractor, its principals, as defined at 49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at 
49 CFR 29.905, are excluded or disqualified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 29.945. The Contractor is 
required to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C and must include the requirement to comply with 49 CFR 29, 
Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, 
the bidder or proposer certifies as follows: The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact 
relied upon by MTD. If it is later determined that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous 
certification, in addition to remedies available to MTD, the Federal Government may pursue available 
remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. The bidder or proposer agrees to 
comply with the requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of 
any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision 
requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions. 

23. PRIVACY ACT (not applicable) 

24. CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS 

(a) Nondiscrimination: In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, 
section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, 
the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to 
comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may 
issue. 

(b) Equal Employment Opportunity: The following equal employment opportunity requirements apply to the 
underlying contract: 

(1) Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex: In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as 
amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to 
comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor 
(U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment 
Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 CFR Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive Order No. 
11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending 
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with 
any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the 
future affect construction activities undertaken in the course of the Project. The Contractor agrees to 
take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age. Such action shall 
include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or 
recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection 
for training, including apprenticeship. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any 
implementing requirements FTA may issue. 

Transit Technical Services 4 Vaquero Systems 



FTA Contract Provisions (FFY 13/14) Santa Barbara MTD 

(2) Age: In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as 
amended, 29 U.S.C. § § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to 
refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, 
the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue. 

(3) Disabilities: In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 
U.S.C. § 12112, the Contractor agrees that it will comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of 
the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 CFR Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with 
disabilities. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may 
issue. 

The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with 
Federal assistance provided by FTA, modified only if necessary to identify the affected parties. 

25. BREACHES & DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

Paragraph 30 of the MTD Master Agreement regarding disputes shall be deemed satisfactory to meet the 
federal requirements for dispute resolution. The Contractor agrees to include the requirements of said 
Paragraph 30 in all subcontracts. 

26. PATENT & RIGHTS IN DATA 

(a) Rights in Data: This following requirements apply to each contract involving experimental, 
developmental or research work: 

(1) The term "subject data" used in this clause means recorded information, whether or not 
copyrighted, that is delivered or specified to be delivered under the contract. The term includes graphic 
or pictorial delineation in media such as drawings or photographs; text in specifications or related 
performance or design-type documents; machine forms such as punched cards, magnetic tape, or 
computer memory printouts; and information retained in computer memory. Examples include, but are 
not limited to: computer software, engineering drawings and associated lists, specifications, standards, 
process sheets, manuals, technical reports, catalog item identifications, and related information. The 
term "subject data" does not include financial reports, cost analyses, and similar information incidental 
to contract administration. 

(2) The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of the contract 
to which this Attachment has been added: 

(A) Except for its own internal use, the Purchaser or Contractor may not publish or reproduce 
subject data in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Purchaser or Contractor 
authorize others to do so, without the written consent of the Federal Government, until such time as 
the Federal Government may have either released or approved the release of such data to the 
public; this restriction on publication, however, does not apply to any contract with an academic 
institution.  

(B) In accordance with 49 CFR § 18.34 and 49 CFR § 19.36, the Federal Government reserves a 
royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to 
authorize others to use, for "Federal Government purposes," any subject data or copyright 
described in subsections (2)(b)1 and (2)(b)2 of this clause below. As used in the previous sentence, 
"for Federal Government purposes," means use only for the direct purposes of the Federal 
Government. Without the copyright owner's consent, the Federal Government may not extend its 
Federal license to any other party. 

(i) Any subject data developed under that contract, whether or not a copyright has been 
obtained; and  

(ii) Any rights of copyright purchased by the Purchaser or Contractor using Federal assistance 
in whole or in part provided by FTA. 

(C) When FTA awards Federal assistance for experimental, developmental, or research work, it is 
FTA's general intention to increase transportation knowledge available to the public, rather than to 

Transit Technical Services 5 Vaquero Systems 



FTA Contract Provisions (FFY 13/14) Santa Barbara MTD 

restrict the benefits resulting from the work to participants in that work. Therefore, unless FTA 
determines otherwise, the Purchaser and the Contractor performing experimental, developmental, 
or research work required by the underlying contract to which this Attachment is added agrees to 
permit FTA to make available to the public, either FTA's license in the copyright to any subject data 
developed in the course of that contract, or a copy of the subject data first produced under the 
contract for which a copyright has not been obtained. If the experimental, developmental, or 
research work, which is the subject of the underlying contract, is not completed for any reason 
whatsoever, all data developed under that contract shall become subject data as defined in 
subsection (a) of this clause and shall be delivered as the Federal Government may direct. This 
subsection (c) , however, does not apply to adaptations of automatic data processing equipment or 
programs for the Purchaser or Contractor's use whose costs are financed in whole or in part with 
Federal assistance provided by FTA for transportation capital projects. 

(D) Unless prohibited by state law, upon request by the Federal Government, the Purchaser and the 
Contractor agree to indemnify, save, and hold harmless the Federal Government, its officers, 
agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any liability, including 
costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation by the Purchaser or Contractor 
of proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, 
reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under that contract. Neither the 
Purchaser nor the Contractor shall be required to indemnify the Federal Government for any such 
liability arising out of the wrongful act of any employee, official, or agents of the Federal 
Government.  

(E) Nothing contained in this clause on rights in data shall imply a license to the Federal 
Government under any patent or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right 
otherwise granted to the Federal Government under any patent. 

(F) Data developed by the Purchaser or Contractor and financed entirely without using Federal 
assistance provided by the Federal Government that has been incorporated into work required by 
the underlying contract to which this Attachment has been added is exempt from the requirements 
of subsections (b), (c), and (d) of this clause, provided that the Purchaser or Contractor identifies 
that data in writing at the time of delivery of the contract work.  

(G) Unless FTA determines otherwise, the Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each 
subcontract for experimental, developmental, or research work financed in whole or in part with 
Federal assistance provided by FTA.  

(3) Unless the Federal Government later makes a contrary determination in writing, irrespective of the 
Contractor's status (i.e., a large business, small business, state government or state instrumentality, 
local government, nonprofit organization, institution of higher education, individual, etc.), the Purchaser 
and the Contractor agree to take the necessary actions to provide, through FTA, those rights in that 
invention due the Federal Government as described in U.S. Department of Commerce regulations, 
"Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government 
Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," 37 CFR Part 401.  

(4) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract for experimental, 
developmental, or research work financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. 

(b) Patent Rights: The following requirements apply to each contract involving experimental, 
developmental, or research work: 

(1) If any invention, improvement, or discovery is conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the 
course of or under the contract to which this Attachment has been added, and that invention, 
improvement, or discovery is patentable under the laws of the United States of America or any foreign 
country, the Purchaser and Contractor agree to take actions necessary to provide immediate notice and 
a detailed report to the party at a higher tier until FTA is ultimately notified. 

(2) Unless the Federal Government later makes a contrary determination in writing, irrespective of the 
Contractor's status (a large business, small business, state government or state instrumentality, local 
government, nonprofit organization, institution of higher education, individual), the Purchaser and the 
Contractor agree to take the necessary actions to provide, through FTA, those rights in that invention 

Transit Technical Services 6 Vaquero Systems 



FTA Contract Provisions (FFY 13/14) Santa Barbara MTD 

due the Federal Government as described in U.S. Department of Commerce regulations, "Rights to 
Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, 
Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," 37 CFR Part 401.  

(3) The Contractor also agrees to include the requirements of this clause in each subcontract for 
experimental, developmental, or research work financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance 
provided by FTA. 

27. TRANSIT EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE AGREEMENTS (not applicable) 

28. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) 

(a) This contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26, 
Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance 
Programs. The national goal for participation of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) is 10%. MTD’s 
overall goal for DBE participation is 1.2%. A separate contract goal [has not been established for this 
procurement. 

(b) The Contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the 
performance of this contract. The Contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in 
the award and administration of this DOT-assisted contract. Failure by the Contractor to carry out these 
requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or 
such other remedy as MTD deems appropriate. Each subcontract the Contractor signs with a subcontractor 
must include the assurance in this paragraph (see 49 CFR 26.13(b)). 

(c) The successful bidder/offeror will be required to report its DBE participation obtained through race-
neutral means throughout the period of performance. 

(d) The Contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for 
satisfactory performance of that work no later than 30 days after the Contractor’s receipt of payment for that 
work from the MTD. In addition, the Contractor may not hold retainage from its subcontractors. 

(e) Contractor must promptly notify MTD whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this 
contract is terminated or fails to complete its work, and must make good faith efforts to engage another 
DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. The Contractor may not terminate any 
DBE subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written 
consent of MTD. 

29. [RESERVED] 

30. INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS 

The preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, 
whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual provisions required 
by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1E, are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the 
contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a 
conflict with other provisions contained in this Agreement. The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to 
perform any act, or refuse to comply with any MTD requests which would cause MTD to be in violation of 
the FTA terms and conditions. The Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this section in all 
subcontracts. 

31. DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING (not applicable) 

32. INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM (ITS) 

Intelligent transportation system (ITS) property and services shall comply with the National ITS Architecture 
and Standards to the extent required by Section 5307(c) of SAFETEA-LU, FTA Notice, “FTA National ITS 
Architecture Policy on Transit Projects,” 66 FR 1455 et seq., January 8, 2001, and later published policies 
or implementing directives FTA may issue. 

Transit Technical Services 7 Vaquero Systems 



Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District 

Transit Technical Services 

Scope of Work 

I. Background Overview—The Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District (“MTD”) is a California special 
district providing public transportation to the South Coast of Santa Barbara County. MTD bus service is 
key to enabling thousands of people to get to and from work, school, medical facilities, etc. on a daily 
basis. As a public service provider, it is imperative that MTD facilities and systems be maintained and 
upgraded as necessary in order that those services may be provided in an effective and efficient 
manner. 

 
II. General Description—The Contractor shall provide consultation, research, project management, and 

project implementation services to MTD on an as-needed, project by project basis. MTD currently has 
plans to proceed with the following projects for which services may be required: Automated Vehicle 
Location System, Smartcard Fare Collection System, and Photovoltaic System.  Professional services 
may also be required in connection with other MTD projects or programs such as its Battery-Electric 
Vehicle Program. 

 
III. Transit Technical Service Requirements—Contractor shall provide research, assessment, project 

management and consultation services as needed for the following projects: 
 

A. Automated Vehicle Location System—MTD is currently conducting a solicitation for the acquisition 
and installation of an Automated Vehicle Location (AVL) system.  The Transit Technical Service 
contractor will likely be assigned the role of project implementation manager and be MTD’s liaison 
with firm hired to provide the AVL system.  The AVL system will result in a turnkey system that shall 
provide the following five primary ITS enhancements: 

 
 Automatic Vehicle Location  

 Time of Arrival Information  

 Route & Schedule Adherence  

 Onboard Video Surveillance  

 Yard Wireless Network 
 
B. Smartcard Fare Collection—MTD is interested in working with local entities such as the University 

of California Santa Barbara (UCSB) and Santa Barbara Community College (SBCC) to implement 
bus pass technology that will be inter-operable with MTD’s GFI Odyssey Fare Revenue Collection 
system and student identification products administered by UCSB and SBCC. 

 

C. Photovoltaic System—MTD desires to implement a photovoltaic system at Olive Terminal to 
generate electricity for either onsite usage or sale to a public utility. Such a system would make use 
of it’s large flat roof areas for solar panels. The most likely roof areas include the bus canopy 
adjacent to the shop and the bus charging canopy structure in the southeast corner of the facility. 

 
D. Battery-Electric Vehicle Program— MTD’s Battery-Electric Vehicle program was introduced in the 

late 1980’s with the introduction of two 22’ lead-acid battery-electric shuttles.  The program has 
expanded to a current size of 19 shuttles powered by a mix of battery types including lead-acid, 
NiCad and Lithium ION.  The Transit Technical Consultant will be required to provide the following 
services: 

 Research & Assessment (Transit & Battery Industry) 
 Procurement (Buses, Batteries, Chargers) 

Issued December 3, 2013 Page 1 of 2 



Santa Barbara MTD A&E Services Scope of Work 

Issued December 2, 2013 Page 2 of 2 

 Reporting (Board & Technical reports) 
 Program Evaluation 
 Grant Applications 
 

E. Work with MTD, the City of Santa Barbara, the County of Santa Barbara, the public, or other 
parties as necessary during applicable stages of the project(s). 

 
IV. MTD Responsibilities—MTD shall be responsible for the following tasks: 

A. Provide access to available and applicable MTD documentation as needed. 

B. Pay or provide reimbursement for the cost of planning and permit fees associated with a project. 

 
V. Procedure to Order Services—When project services are needed, MTD will issue to the Contractor a 

Request for Quotation (RFQ) which will include a description of the preliminary project scope of work. 
Such requests will typically be for a fixed price quote, although other contract types may be requested. 
In response, the Contractor shall provide MTD with a quote for the project work that includes a price 
breakdown of: professional services by labor category and hours; materials (e.g., plans) or other 
services by type and quantity; and a description and price for any other components of the quote. Other 
than the labor or material unit prices fixed by the Transit Technical Services contract, components of 
the quote are subject to review by MTD. Additional information may be requested to assist MTD in 
evaluating that the quote is fair and reasonable. 

 
VI. Changes—Any changes to the Transit Technical Services contract and orders issued thereunder shall 

be supported by a change order. Change orders will include detailed costs and the rationale for the 
change and must be approved in advance by MTD prior to the Contractor proceeding with the change. 

 
VII. Complete Projects—This Scope of Work does not include a complete description of all services or 

processes that may be required to carry out each ordered project or task. This Scope of Work is 
provided only for matters considered key to the project. Except as described herein, Contractor shall 
provide all Transit Technical services necessary to properly complete each ordered project. 



Vaquero Systems 
4825 Iron Springs Road, Creston, CA 93432 

 

January 14, 2013 

Dear Mr. Estrada, 

Vaquero Systems is pleased to submit qualifications in response to your Request for Qualification for 

Transit Technical Services. Vaquero Systems interested and willing to enter into a contract to provide 

these services as outlined in your supplied Scope of Work for Transit Technical Services Consultant. If 

awarded this work, Vaquero Systems will exert our best efforts to fulfill these responsibilities. Vaquero 

Systems is also willing to accept the contract terms in the MTD Master Agreement, the Federal Transit 

Administration Contract Provisions, and the MTD Scope of Work. Vaquero Systems is able and willing to 

meet general liability and professional liability insurance requirements if we are awarded this work. 

Vaquero Systems is a partnership between Jeff Gerfen and Neil Hockaday, who together have 

successfully completed over $3,300,000 in transportation-related sponsored projects at California 

Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo. These projects have largely been completeld for state 

agencies, although some have been subsidized with federal funds. Project values have ranged from 

$500,000 all the way down to $5,000. We are extremely familiar with what is needed to get projects 

done, large and small alike. We are also well accustomed with working with staff from public agencies, 

including Caltrans, CHP, and local transit agencies such as yourselves.  Neil and I were also both integral 

in Vaquero Systems, LLC’s previous successful work to develop the Mobile On-Time Performance System 

(MOPS) and the Google Transit Feed Generator for MTD. This work required us to start with virtually no 

knowledge of MTD’s schedule, stops, and routes, and build an accurate and effective schedule 

performance reporting system. We are problem solvers, able to leverage our skills and talents create 

system solutions.  

An important part of problem solving is to know when assistance is required; as such we are ready and 

willing to look outside for expertise when needed to complete a project. We have access to experts in 

both alternative fuel and battery-powered vehicles as well as solar energy production through the Cal 

Poly Electrical Engineering Department. These experts can be brought in for consultation and assist on 

the project as needed. We are also able to find outside help from industry as required.  

We feel it is worth noting that in addition to our technical skills, we are well versed at facilitating input 

from a variety of people and entities to arrive at a solution which accounts for core needs yet meets the 

practicality of the day required by the adopting institution. For example, our skills in the areas of transit 

management, fare collection, data transmission, information systems, and needs analysis make us well 

suited to 1.) investigate Smartcard fare requirements among MTD, UCSB, and SBCC, 2.) understand 

solutions which have been implemented elsewhere, e.g. Tucson, and 3.) then facilitate a system solution 

which both meets the operational requirements of MTD and is satisfying to all institutional partners.  

We have been working together on a variety of projects since 1999 and have technical skills which are 

both broad and deep. 

  



 

Our core competencies are: 
 

 Transit Management and Passenger Information Systems – Design, implementation, 

configuration, testing, and integration of APTS systems. 

 Solar Power and Battery Systems – Design of electronic systems which operate independent of 

the grid. 

 Data Communications – Requirements analysis, specification and design, and implementation of 

terrestrial and satellite communications systems. 

 Systems and Solutions Engineering – Stakeholder needs analysis, system concept development, 

requirements writing, and system testing and validation. 

 Software Development – Specification and management of software development projects, 

many of which have been in support of transportation-related systems. 

 Information Systems – Systems implementation and administration, computer network 

configuration, network security. 

 Transportation Management Center Operations – Development of TMC Simulation training 

tools, conducting operator training in simulator. 

 Problem solving – Solving complex problems which require study of alternatives and issues, 

understanding of user needs, and creating an effective system solution. 

We have attached the following documents as part of this package: Statement of Qualifications, 

résumés for both the principle members of the company, Bidder Information form, References & 

Suppliers form, Lobbying Certification form, and the Acknowledgement of Addenda form. 

In closing, we feel that Vaquero Systems is well qualified to act as MTD’s Transit Technical Services 

consultant. Our skills, which have been honed working with transit and transportation systems, are well 

suited to assist with the projects planned by MTD. We look forward to the potential opportunity to work 

further with Santa Barbara MTD. 

Sincerely, 

 

Jeff Gerfen 

President, Vaquero Systems 

























  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 

 
AGENDA DATE: May 13, 2014 AGENDA ITEM #:  10 

DEPARTMENT: Risk TYPE: Action 

PREPARED BY: Gabriel Garcia ______________________________  
     Signature 

REVIEWED BY: Sherrie Fisher ______________________________  
   GM Signature 

SUBJECT: Property Insurance Renewal  
Effective: May 24, 2014 through May 23, 2015 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize MTD staff to bind Property Insurance 
coverage with Liberty Mutual Insurance Company and Earthquake coverage effective May 24, 
2014.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Property Insurance proposal includes all MTD locations as follow: Cota-Olive Street buildings, 
Transit Center, remote-charging station in Carpinteria, Overpass facility as a rental property, 
MTD’s radio repeaters and generators.  The coverage is blanketed at $12.80 Million with a $25K 
deductible.  The cost for this coverage is $14,868.    
 
The Property Insurance covers losses to buildings, building contents and equipment in the event of 
a fire.  This policy also includes coverage for loss of rental income for the Overpass facility, glass 
coverage at the Transit Center and Boiler & Machinery Insurance.  The Boiler and Machinery rider 
indemnifies MTD for losses resulting from a short circuit to the electrical system and resulting 
damage to the charging facilities.  The policy specifically excludes coverage for Earthquake and/or 
Flood damage which require separate riders.    
  
MTD’s expiring coverage with Travelers Insurance Company includes Earthquake (EQ) coverage 
at $1 Million Aggregate with a $100K deductable.  However, Travelers Insurance Company 
provided a renewal quote that includes EQ coverage at $1 Million Aggregate with a $100K 
deductable at a 29% premium increase for a total renewal of $29,969.   
 
Staff Recommends fully insuring the Administrative building, Maintenance Building, Transit Center 
and Overpass facility in the event of an Earthquake.  The cost to fully insure the buildings at a 
Total Insured Value of $9,711,937 with a 10% per unit subject to $50,000 minimum deductable is 
$26,300.    This covers losses to the buildings and contents of the building in the event of an 
Earthquake. 
 
Staff has also prepared other options that are available for Earthquake coverage on the following 
page. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
The expiring premium was $23,120 which included Earthquake coverage a $1million aggregate. 
The cost of binding the property insurance with Liberty Mutual Insurance Company for the property 
coverage is $14,868 (excluding flood and EQ). The cost to fully insure the Cota-Olive Street 
buildings, Transit Center and Overpass facility in the event of an Earthquake is an additional 
$26,300. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 

Travelers 
Insurance 
Renewal 

Premium without 
EQ  

Liberty Mutual 
Insurance Proposal 

without EQ 

Property Insurance  $27,625  $14,868  
      

 
Travelers 
Insurance 

“A” rated Insurance 
Company 

Earthquake Coverage $9.7 
Million Total Insured Value   $26,300 

Earthquake Coverage $1 
Million Loss Limit $2,344 $13,916  

Earthquake Coverage $2 
Million Loss Limit    $17,000 

  

Staff 
Recommendation 

Total Premium $29,969  $41,168 
 
   
 
SUPPLEMENTAL EARTHQUAKE COVERAGE OPTIONS: 
 
Earthquake on Four Buildings & Contents (Staff recommendation) 
Administration: $4,785,203 
Maintenance: $2,386,514 
Chapala Transit Center: $566,740 
Overpass building: $1,973,480 
Total Insurable Value (TIV) $9,711,937 
Deductible 10% per unit subject to $50,000 minimum 
Pricing: $26,300  
 
 
Option 1 (Equal to Travelers Insurance Company coverage)  
Insuring all buildings subject to a maximum $1,000,000 loss limit. 
Total Insurable Value $9,711,937 
Deductible 10% per unit of insurance 
Pricing $13,916 
 
Option 2 
Insuring all building subject to a maximum $2,000,000 loss limit 
Total Insurable Value: $9,711,937 
Deductible 10% per unit of insurance 
Pricing $17,000 
 



To:  MTD Board of Directors 
From:  Sherrie Fisher, General Manager 
Date:  May 8, 2014 
Subject: General Manager’s Report 
 
Standard LNI shelters are scheduled to be installed on May 9th for the Cota at 
Quarantina Crosstown Shuttle stops for both eastbound and westbound directions.  In 
the coming weeks,  LNI shelters will also be installed at the San Pascual at Canon 
Perdido stop served by Line 17 and at the Montecito Street at Franklin Center stop 
served by Line 2 and the Crosstown Shuttle.  Installation of the shelter at the Montecito 
Street stop involved demolishing the aging wooden shelter at that location.  All of these 
shelters include solar powered lighting and were funded by a CDBG grant through the 
City of Santa Barbara.   
 
With the approval of the August service changes by the Board, Planning staff is 
preparing information about the changes to drivers, agencies, educational institutions, 
interested stakeholders, press and the public.   
 
Planning staff is requesting UCSB to replace the aging wooden shelters with new 
shelters at the eastbound and westbound stops at the proposed San Joaquin student 
housing project to be located near the corner of El Colegio and Storke Road.  Planning 
staff is also requesting UCSB to install a shelter at the Storke at El Colegio northbound 
stop since that will serve both the proposed San Joaquin project and Sierra Madre 
housing project under construction located across Storke Road from this stop.   
 
The City of Santa Barbara is submitting grant applications to the Active Transportation 
Grant program which will include infilling sidewalk on the Eastside and along La Cumbre 
Road north of State Street.  MTD’s Planning staff coordinated with City staff on 
identifying priority sidewalk gaps leading to bus stops 
 
City of Goleta Public Works staff met with Planning and Operations staff to discuss the 
proximity of the westbound Hollister Avenue at Wendy’s bus stop to the nearby Hollister 
Avenue crosswalk.  Goleta City staff is considering installation of a HAWK type 
pedestrian signal at that location to replace the pedestrian actuated flashing light. 
 
Staff members from Maintenance, Planning, Operations and IT, led by Brad Davis, have 
spent many hours evaluating the vendor proposals for the AIM System project.  This 
procurement will include Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL) technology to provide 
passengers with real-time bus arrival information and help identify schedule adherence 
concerns; and onboard video surveillance. Staff is in the final negotiation phases with 
the two remaining AVL vendors with the goal of including several optional systems within 
the project budget including automated bus stop announcements, automatic passenger 
counters, real-time vehicle health monitoring, and computer-aided dispatch.  Staff is 
preparing information for a board decision no later than the first meeting in June. This is 
an exacting and exciting project that will assist us in proving the best possible transit 
service. 
 
The last of the current cruise ship season concluded Sunday, May 4th.  Visits are to 
resume this coming fall.  Due to the larger capacity of the most recent vessels, extra 
Shuttles were added to mitigate overloads (Crown Princess).  The spectacular weather 



helped bring passengers and crew ashore for most of the visits.  We welcome the 
various lines back at the end of summer. 
 
Training is continuing for our newest Operator in Training, Brad Sousa.  He is 
progressing well and will be taking his DMV test in a few weeks. 
 
Operations continue to attend and will attend the meetings for the May 28 “Active 
Shooter Drill” at Santa Barbara City College.   
 
Drivers’ bidding for our Summer Service is complete. 
 
The Amgen Tour will be visiting Santa Barbara May 15.  Preparations are in progress for 
various detours that will be implemented due to the “dynamic” closures.  There will be 
extra Supervision in place during that time. 
 
During the Earth Day Festival (April 26-27), Operations assigned an Operator each day 
to transport and recover the Shuttle that was on display, and to assist Marketing at the 
heavily attended event. 
 
Summer in Santa Barbara brings many wonderful events to the area, which includes, but 
is not limited to Summer Solstice, Independence Day and Old Spanish Days.  Our 
normal preparations of planned detours and extra service are in progress. 
 
HR held a new driver information meeting and video exam in preparation for hiring 
additional new bus driver trainees.   
 
Staff attended a meeting of SBCAG’s Technical Transportation Advisory Committee 
(TTAC) on Thursday, May 1. MTD is a voting member of the Committee. TTAC received 
reports on several topics, including the Draft Park and Ride Study and the Draft FY 2015 
Measure A Program of Projects. TTAC voted to recommend that the SBCAG Board 
approve the amended FY 2013 Measure A audits and the Congestion Management 
Program Biennial Review. 
 
MTD’s Triennial Review by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) is underway. The 
Triennial Review is one of FTA’s management tools for examining grantee performance 
and adherence to current FTA requirements and policies.  The Triennial Review site visit 
is scheduled for June 19 & 20. Staff continues to prepare requested documents and 
answers to questions for submittal to the reviewer prior to the site visit. 
 
Gillig #615 has returned from Cummins Pacific.  Now Gillig #621 is there for the same 
problem of diesel fuel in the engine lube oil. 
 
Gillig #904 which is included in an Allison field campaign for the hybrid drive DPIM is 
now at Valley Power Systems for replacement of the DPIM.   
 
Gillig #914 is down for repetitive crank sensor error codes which thus far seem to be 
related to the air compressor.  The codes occur only when it is compressing air.  
Cummins Cal Pacific has not been able to diagnose the cause.  The camshaft pulley 
used as reference for the crankshaft sensor and sensor but did not correct the problem.  
A new sensor wiring harness was ordered, received and will be installed as the next 
step.   



 
A replacement DPF element is needed for Gillig #901.  Gillig has not responded to 
repeated requests for a quote.  A purchase request for the purchase from Cummins 
Pacific has been submitted for approval. 
 
Various labels with shuttle battery information are being produced by Vogue Signs in 
Oxnard.  Santa Barbara Sign also produced a red on white “HIGH VOLTAGE” label to 
be placed on each battery tray.  
 
Mowing of the vegetation on the Calle Real property is underway and expected to be 
completed by Thursday. 
 


	Agenda
	Draft Minutes 4-29-14
	Cover Sheet 20140513
	apsbmtd 20140513
	ARsbmtd 20140513
	20140513_Quarterly_Financial_Report
	SUBJECT: Finance Update & Financial Statement Analysis for the Nine-Month Period Ending March 31, 2014

	20140513 Quarterly Financial Statements
	Board Report-20140513-Transit Technical Assistant Contract Award Recommendation
	TTC Contract Award Recommendation Board Report (20140429)
	Transit Technical Services Contract-Vaquero Systems (20140508)abridged
	1-Master Agreement-Vaquero Systems (final 20140508).pdf
	2-Exhibit A-FTA Contract Provisions-Vaquero Systems (final 20140508).pdf
	1. Fly America Requirements (not applicable)
	2. Buy America Requirements (not applicable)
	3. Charter Bus & School Bus Requirements (not applicable)
	4. Cargo Preference Requirements (not applicable)
	5. Seismic Safety Requirements
	6. Energy Conservation Requirements
	7. Clean Water Requirements
	8. Bus Testing (not applicable)
	9. Pre-Award & Post-Delivery Audit Requirements (not applicable)
	10. Lobbying
	11. Access to Records & Reports
	12. Federal Changes
	13. Bonding Requirements (not applicable)
	14. Clean Air
	15. Recycled Products (not applicable)
	16. Davis-Bacon & Copeland Anti-Kickback Acts (not applicable)
	17. Contract Work Hours & Safety Standards Act (not applicable)
	18.  [Reserved]
	19. No Government Obligations to Third Parties
	20. Program Fraud & False or Fraudulent Statements & Related Acts
	21. Termination
	22. Government-Wide Debarment & Suspension
	23. Privacy Act (not applicable)
	24. Civil Rights Requirements
	25. Breaches & Dispute Resolution
	26. Patent & Rights in Data
	27. Transit Employee Protective Agreements (not applicable)
	28. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
	29. [Reserved]
	30. Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms
	31. Drug & Alcohol Testing (not applicable)
	32. Intelligent Transportation System (ITS)

	3-Exhibit B-Transit Technical Services Scope of Work.pdf
	I. Background Overview—The Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District (“MTD”) is a California special district providing public transportation to the South Coast of Santa Barbara County. MTD bus service is key to enabling thousands of people to get to and from work, school, medical facilities, etc. on a daily basis. As a public service provider, it is imperative that MTD facilities and systems be maintained and upgraded as necessary in order that those services may be provided in an effective and efficient manner.

	4-Vaquero Systems Qualifications Proposal (20140114).pdf
	5-Vaquero Systems Price Proposal (20140507).pdf

	BOD Prop Renewal final to SF 05 13 14 Final
	SUBJECT: Property Insurance Renewal 
	Effective: May 24, 2014 through May 23, 2015
	SUPPLEMENTAL EARTHQUAKE COVERAGE OPTIONS:

	GM Report
	Quarterly Report Packet.pdf
	QuarterlyReportCover
	Table of Contents
	Planning 
	Ridership and Overloads…………………………………………………..4-10 
	Transit Operations
	Management & Administration
	Compliance……………...………………………………………………………25 
	Organization Chart……………………………………………………………..26



	1-3_ FY14_Q3_Summary
	3Q, FY 2014 Summary
	January 1, 2014 to March 31, 2014
	Operations Department
	Maintenance Department
	Human Resources/Risk Department


	4_ 201403 Planning - 3 Ridership Revenue
	5_ 201403 Planning - 4 System Ridership
	6_ 201403 Planning - 5 Passengers per Revenue Hour
	7_ 201403 Planning - 6 At Capacity
	8_ 201403 Planning - 7 Too Full
	9_ 201403 Planning - 8 Bikes
	10_ 201403 Planning - 9 Wheelchair
	11_Operations
	Sheet1

	12_ Copy of 2014-01-03 passenger complaints-compliments
	Sheet1

	13_ FY 2014 3rd EVS
	Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014 (March 31, 2014)
	Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2013 (March 31, 2013)
	Fiscal Year 2014 to Date (March 31, 2014)
	Fiscal Year 2013 to Date (March 31, 2013)

	14_FY 2014 3rd novas
	Fleet Consumption Statistics
	Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014 (March 31, 2014)  See NOTE below
	Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2013 (March 31, 2013)
	Fiscal Year 2014 to Date (March 31, 2014)  Ten (10) buses retired YTD
	Fiscal Year 2013 to Date (March 31, 2013)

	15_ FY 2014 3rd Gillig 29
	Gillig 700 Series Fleet Facts 
	2004 Gillig LF 29
	Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014 (March 31, 2014)
	Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2013 (March 31, 2013)
	Fiscal Year 2014 to Date (March 31, 2014)
	Fiscal Year 2013 to Date (March 31, 2013)

	16_FY 2014 3rd Gillig 29 ' Hybrid
	Fleet Consumption Statistics
	Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014 (March 31, 2014)
	Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2013 (March 31, 2013)
	Fiscal Year 2014 to Date (March 31, 2014)
	Fiscal Year 2013 to Date (March 31, 2013)

	17_FY 2014 3rd Gillig 40
	2004 Gillig LF 40
	2011 Gillig LF 40
	2013 Gillig LF 40
	Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014 (March 31, 2014)  Two new buses added this Qtr
	Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2013 (March 31, 2013)
	Fiscal Year 2014 to Date (March 31, 2014) Thirteen (13) new buses added YTD
	Fiscal Year 2013 to Date (March 31, 2013)

	18_FY 2014 3rd 900H
	Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014 (March 31, 2014)
	Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2013 (March 31, 2013)
	Fiscal Year 2014 to Date (March 31, 2014)
	Fiscal Year 2013 to Date (March 31, 2013)

	19_ FY 2014 3rd MCI CEL
	Fleet Consumption Statistics
	Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014 (March 31, 2014)
	Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2013 (March 31, 2013)
	Fiscal Year 2014 to Date (March 31, 2014)
	Fiscal Year 2013 to Date (March 31, 2013)

	20_FY14_Roadcalls_Q3
	Sheet1

	21_ FY14_Roadcalls_Q3 YTD
	Sheet1

	22_2014 1-3 staffing report
	Sheet1

	23_ 2014 1-3 Liability report
	Sheet1

	24_ Marketing
	Sheet1

	25_ FY14_Q3_Compliance_Report
	Transit Finance
	Compliance Report for Quarter Ending March 31, 2014
	MTD Compliance Actions


	OrgChartMay2014




